
TR
P

roperty Investm
ent Trust plc – 2004 A

nnual R
eport &

 A
ccounts

H
G

I5
9

9
4

/2
0

0
4

TR Property Investment Trust plc
Report & Accounts for the year ended

31 March 2004

TR Property Investment
Trust plc is managed by

Printed by Park Communications, London



Contents

TR Property Investment Trust plc

Directors’ Review
Contents

1 Highlights of the Year and Dividend
2 Profile
3 Financial Highlights and Performance Information
4 Chairman’s Statement
8 Manager’s Report

16 Twenty Largest Equity Investments
18 Investment Properties

Directors’ Report
20 Directors and Management
22 Directors’ Remuneration Report
23 Report of the Directors
26 Corporate Governance
28 Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the Accounts

Accounts
29 Report of the Independent Auditors
30 Group Statement of Total Return
31 Group and Company Balance Sheets
32 Group Cash Flow Statement
33 Notes to the Accounts
47 Notice of Annual General Meeting
48 Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Shareholder Information
49 General Shareholder Information and Glossary of Terms
52 Directors and other Information

Inside Back Cover Henderson Investment Trust Share Plan 
Henderson ISA
Henderson Transfer PEP or ISA

Henderson Investment Trust Share Plan
The Henderson Investment Trust Share Plan offers a simple and flexible way of investing in
TR Property Investment Trust plc. The Share Plan offers the following:

• Regular savings from £50 per month/quarter, or lump sum investments from £500
and additional ‘top-up’ from £100

• An income reinvestment facility. Alternatively, you can have dividends paid to your
bank or building society account

• All paperwork and documentation is simplified and reduced to a minimum

• Half yearly valuations with consolidated tax certificate and complimentary newsletters

Henderson ISA
You can invest directly in TR Property Investment Trust plc through the Henderson ISA. The
ISA offers the following:

• Tax free income and tax free growth

• Regular savings from £100 per month or lump sum investments from £2,000

• An income reinvestment facility. Alternatively, you can have dividends paid to your
bank or building society account

• Half yearly valuations, reports and complimentary newsletters

• Both Mini and Maxi ISAs available for investment by lump sum or regular savings

Henderson Transfer PEP or ISA
A Henderson Transfer PEP or ISA allows you to transfer your existing PEP or ISA funds into the
Trust. Investments retain their tax-efficient status during and after transfer.

Please remember that the value of your investment can fall as well as rise and you may not get
back the amount originally invested. Tax assumptions may change if the law changes and the
value of tax relief will depend upon your individual circumstances. 

Further Information
Please consult our website www.itshenderson.com or write to Henderson Global Investors,
FREEPOST, Newbury RG14 2ZZ. No stamp is required.

Alternatively, please contact your professional adviser for further information or call our Investor
Services Department on freephone 0800 832 832 quoting the reference REPORT. Please call
(44) 20 7818 1818 if you are telephoning from abroad.

Henderson Global Investors is the name under which Henderson Global Investors Limited,
Henderson Investment Funds Limited, Henderson Fund Management plc, Henderson Investment
Management Limited and Henderson Administration Limited (all authorised and regulated by the
Financial Services Authority), provide investment products and services. We may record telephone
calls for our mutual protection and to improve customer service.

4 Broadgate, London EC2M 2DA.



TR Property Investment Trust 1

TR Property Investment Trust plc

Highlights of the Year

� NAV total return 59.1% versus benchmark 47.4%

� Share Price total return 66.2%

� Net dividend for year raised by 22% to 2.50p per share

Dividend

Subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting on
26 July 2004, a final dividend of 1.40p (2003: 1.15p) per ordinary share
will be paid on 30 July 2004 to shareholders on the register on 2 July
2004. The shares will be quoted ex-dividend on 30 June 2004.
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The objective of TR Property Investment Trust plc is to

maximise shareholders’ total returns by investing in property shares and

property on an international basis. Approximately 85% of the Company’s

assets are invested in Pan European listed property securities with the

balance in directly owned UK real estate.

Investment The investment selection process seeks to identify well managed
Selection companies of all sizes, especially those with a focus on a particular type of real

estate business. We generally regard future growth and capital appreciation
potential more highly than immediate initial yield or discount to asset value.

Benchmark The benchmark is the S&P/Citigroup European Property Index in Sterling (the
Citigroup Index). The Citigroup Index, against which the manager’s performance is
measured by the Board, comprises 83 companies and is itself a sub-index of the
S&P/Citigroup Global Property Index, a longstanding and widely used benchmark
in the world of real estate securities. The Citigroup Index is freefloat based and
calculated daily on a price only and total return basis. The benchmark website
www.globalindices.standardandpoors.com contains further details.

Capital  Over the past five years the net asset value per share has risen by 117%. Over the
Growth same period the benchmark index has risen by 54%.

Income Over the past five years the annual net dividend per share has grown by 96%,
Growth equivalent to 14.4% p.a. compound.

Independent The directors are all independent of the management company and meet
Board regularly to consider investment strategy and to monitor performance.

Shares easy Details of how the shares can be bought through the Henderson Investment Trust
to buy Share Plan and the Henderson ISA are given on the inside back cover.

Website Information about the Company can be found on the websites
www.itshenderson.com or www.trproperty.co.uk.
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Financial Highlights

Performance
Assets and Benchmark

Performance
Share Price 

31 March 31 March
2004 2003

Benchmark performance (price only)* +41.5% -9.3%

NAV price only return +54.4% -6.4%

Benchmark performance (total return)* +47.4% -5.5%

NAV total return* +59.1% -4.2%

IPD Annual Index total return** +12.5% +10.6%

Total return from direct property +12.5% +8.0%

31 March 31 March
2004 2003 Change

Revenue
Gross revenue (£’000) 16,247 16,676 -2.6%

Revenue pre-tax (£’000) 11,328 11,971 -5.4%

Revenue per share 2.51p 2.30p +9.1%

Net dividend per share 2.50p 2.05p +22.0%

Balance Sheet
Gross assets (£’000) 486,266 359,145 +35.4%

Shareholders’ funds (£’000) 400,739 304,127 +31.8%

Shares in issue at end of period (m) 354.4 416.5 -14.9%

Gearing 20% 15%

Net asset value per share 113.07p 73.02p +54.8%

31 March 31 March
2004 2003 Change

Share price at 31 March 95p 59p +61.0%

Share price total return† +66.2% -6.2%

Market capitalisation at 31 March £337m £246m +37.0%

Sources: Henderson Global Investors/†AITC/*Datastream/**Extrapolated to March 2004
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Chairman’s Statement

Alastair Ross Goobey CBE MA Hon. FIA Hon. RICS Chairman
3 June 2004

of our Company. At this year end, the net asset value per

share had reached 113.1p, and the share price was

hovering just under the 100p mark. The dividend per

share has risen over the same period from 0.90p per

share to the recommended 2.50p for the year just ended.

There are very few companies of any sort that can match

this record, and TR Property has outperformed almost all

other investment trusts over the period.

Management

Shareholders will have been disturbed to read that, at the

end of April, the Board gave notice on the investment

management contract with Henderson Global Investors.

This followed on the resignation from Henderson of 

Chris Turner and Marcus Phayre-Mudge, the Trust’s fund

manager and his deputy. As you will be aware, the Trust

contracts with Henderson for its investment management,

not with our individual managers, who are employees of

the incumbent management house. Your Board has no

locus in discussions between our appointed manager and

its employees, but we have taken the opportunity given by

this unwelcome development to give notice on the

investment management contract to expire at the end of

September, with no compensation payable to Henderson.

We have invited proposals for the management of your

Company, and are currently engaged, with help from our

Introduction

Since this Report marks the end of my Chairmanship of

your Board of Directors, I hope shareholders will forgive

me if I indulge in a retrospective of the ten years during

which I have served on the Board. My involvement in our

Company began when PosTel, as it then was, now

Hermes, swapped some of the smaller properties in its

clients’ portfolios for shares and warrants in TR Property.

The shares were issued effectively at a premium to net

asset value, and Hermes clients became owners of over

20% of the share capital of the Company. I was invited 

to join the Board as a representative of that shareholding.

Consequently, while I was Chief Executive of Hermes, 

I was not an independent director. Only when I retired

from Hermes, and the investment of Hermes clients in 

the Company had fallen below 10%, could I agree to

succeed Grant Cochrane as your Chairman. The decision

taken back in 1994 has proved to be one of the more

rewarding, in personal satisfaction, that I have taken in my

career. The quality of the Board, and, particularly, of the

investment managers, has enabled TR Property to create

an extraordinary record of success over the period. The ‘B’

share issue with warrants made in 1994 was at a price

equivalent to 40p a share. After a couple of difficult years

in the share market when the net asset value fell, there

has been a striking rise in both the assets and share price
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from property to flow through to the equity investor

untaxed. During the year we saw the introduction of the

French equivalent of a Real Estate Investment Trust, and,

in the UK, the Chancellor is consulting on the introduction

of a similar regime. The consultation will determine the

details of any British version. This, together with a

constant flow of quoted companies being taken private at

nearer their quoted net asset values, produced a total

return of 62% in the year to March 2004. European

property shares, in sterling, gave a total return of 34.5%

over the same period. Our benchmark Index showed a

total return of 47.4%, and I am pleased to report that the

Trust’s net asset value rose by 54.8%, from 73.0p to

113.1p and that our net asset value total return was

59.1%. This is the sixth year in succession that the net

asset value total return has beaten the benchmark total

return. The share price rose from 59p to 95p, a 61.0%

increase and showed a total return of 66.2%. The

ungeared total return from our direct property portfolio

was 12.5%, well below that achieved in property

securities. Your managers had reduced the exposure to

direct property to take advantage of the anticipated

recovery in equity share markets. This ability to arbitrage

between the direct and indirect property markets is 

advisers, in sifting through the many applicants for this

role. We have asked Henderson to make a proposal. An

appointment will be made in good time before the current

contract expires. Meanwhile the fund managers remain at

their desks at Henderson until their notice period expires

and continue to run the Trust. I am pleased to say that

everyone involved in this development has behaved in a

mature and sensible fashion, always keeping the interests

of our shareholders uppermost in their minds. It is possible

that a decision on a new management contract will have

been made in time for the Annual General Meeting at the

end of July, but, at least, we will be able to give you an

update on the position then.

The Past Year

In last year’s Annual Report, I expressed the view that

‘direct property has probably reached the zenith of its

relative performance in the current cycle’. The sharp

recovery in equity markets has indeed reversed the

performance order over the past twelve months. However

property shares have outperformed even the rise in the

general equity market, both in the UK and in many of our

favoured European markets. The common factor has been

the move towards enabling more of the rental income

Composite Index (FTSE Real Estate Index to 30 September 2001; 
S&P/Citigroup European Property Index from 1 October 2001)

TR Property Share Price TR Property Net Asset Value
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Index of TR Property net asset value and share price compared with a composite index comprising the FTSE Real
Estate Index (for the period 31 March 1999 to 30 September 2001) and the S&P/Citigroup European Property Index
(for the period 1 October 2001 to 31 March 2004)

Five Year Performance

Chairman’s Statement continued
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costs of running the Trust are charged to the capital

account. Consequently, in cash flow terms, payment of a

high percentage of reported earnings actually requires the

sale of capital assets to meet the management costs

charged to that account.

Share Repurchases

Your Board has taken active steps to ensure that the

discount of the share price to underlying asset value is not

simply left to chance. Where we have identified the

possibility of buying back shares in the market that would

enhance the net assets for remaining shareholders and

help keep the absolute size of the Trust’s portfolio to a

level appropriate to its investment universe, we have acted.

Our managers, working to the Board’s instructions, bought

back a total of 62.08 million shares at a total cost of

£48.02m – an average price of 77.35p per share including

costs, adding around 2.10p per share to the total return of

all the remaining shares. Some 53.8 million (almost 90%)

of these shares were bought back in a single transaction

at the end of October 2003, details of which I included in

my interim report. The purchases almost exhausted our

buy-back powers granted at the last Annual General

Meeting, but these powers were renewed at an

Extraordinary General Meeting held in January. In the

event, no further repurchases have been made since then.

Gearing and Currency Exposure

The Trust has maintained gearing in the 15% to 33%

range this year. Net debt rose by 72% from £47m at the

start of the year to £81m at the close. Part of the

increase was in order to finance the share buy-back

mentioned above. In accordance with the Board’s policy,

the foreign currency assets and revenue income were

unhedged throughout the year. Sterling rose by 3.2%

against the Euro over the year. This modestly benefited

the Trust’s performance against its benchmark, since the

exposure to European property shares was below that of

the Index level.

Board

As previously announced, I will retire as Chairman and as

a director of the Trust at the conclusion of the Annual

General Meeting. The Board has elected Peter Salsbury,

who joined the Board in 1997, as my successor. Peter is

taking a leading role in the process of selecting an

Chairman’s Statement continued

unique to TR Property among the larger investment trusts,

and your managers have been singularly adept at making

such switches of emphasis over the years.

Revenue and Dividends

Reported revenue earnings per share for the year are

2.51p per share, a rise of 9.1% over that reported for last

year. In a lower inflation environment, we cannot expect

underlying rental growth, from which dividends ultimately

derive, to maintain the 14.7% compound growth in the

Trust’s revenue we have achieved over the past five years.

Earnings per share are also affected by the timing of

dividend receipts, often changing in successive years from

March to April or vice versa, the effects of the repurchase

of our own shares, and the occupation levels of our direct

property holdings. Two of our largest direct property

holdings are in receipt of planning permission for

redevelopment, and occupation levels have been reduced

deliberately to facilitate these redevelopments.

Our managers are currently advising that the Trust’s

revenue per share will increase further in the current year,

subject to unforeseen circumstances. In the medium term,

the Trust may be the beneficiary of a greater flow-through

of rents from property shares following the introduction of

a tax transparent vehicle in the UK property market.

The Board is recommending a final dividend of 1.40p 

per share to shareholders, a 21.7% increase over last

year’s figure of 1.15p. Together with the interim dividend

of 1.10p already paid, this produces a total dividend for

the year of 2.50p, a 22.0% increase over the 2.05p paid

last year. The proposed dividend is only just covered by

reported earnings per share, yet the cost of it is clearly

lower than the after tax earnings of the Trust. This

anomaly occurs because the Trust repurchased a large

number of its own shares last October. Stated earnings

are calculated on the weighted average number of shares

outstanding in the year (388.8 million), whereas the cost

of the dividend is based on the actual number of shares

ranking for this final dividend payment (354.4 million). The

Board has taken the view that there is no reason to

increase our revenue reserves further, and that it will, in

principle, try to distribute its after tax earnings more fully,

on a sustainable basis. I would point out however that, in

common with almost all investment trusts, part of the
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Chairman’s Statement continued

investment manager to run the Trust on the expiry of the

current contract. The Board is also actively considering 

the recruitment of a new non-executive director. I am

delighted to leave the Company in the hands of a Board

which is blessed with such able and experienced people.

Outlook

Whereas a year ago the stock market was over-fearful 

of the future, there is a danger that an equally erroneous

complacency has entered into investors’ minds. 

In the UK, interest rates are on an upward path, and this

is not a perfect background for property investment. 

Some of the larger property companies have been 

making more encouraging noises about tenant demand.

This reflects the recovery in financial activity in London

particularly, to which the demand for space is highly

sensitive. The asset bases of the UK property shares in

which we invest are dominated by value by City and 

West End offices and large retail investments.

Retail demand has been sustained by a continuing rise in

house prices and growth in remortgaging. Whether these

factors will remain supportive is more questionable, in an

environment of rising mortgage rates and can only be

guessed. One hopes that the residential price bubble can

be deflated, rather than burst, but precedent is not

encouraging. Your portfolio is very lightly exposed to the

housing market. In Continental Europe the economies are

still recovering more slowly, and tenant demand remains

generally weak.

Property investment has become an area of choice for

many institutions that ignored the asset class, or actively

sold it, in the 1990s. It is a source of amazement to me

that people are doing now what they should have done

four years ago, at the height of the dot.com boom. Then,

you will recall, investors wanted ‘clicks’ not ‘bricks’. There

are estimates of unfilled demand for property investments

of over £10 billion in the UK alone. Investors have also

been attracted by the relatively high income yields

available in some of the Continental European markets

that have tax-transparent investment vehicles.

Investment property should remain part of a well-

diversified portfolio. It has income and capital

characteristics not available in other asset classes, and is

not closely correlated with them. Property shares, while

more closely correlated with equity markets, also reflect

the underlying trends in the direct property world. For

most of us, with little opportunity of building up a direct

commercial property portfolio of our own, and certainly 

not on an international basis, TR Property represents an

excellent way in which to attain that exposure at a low

cost, with highly professional and successful management.

I shall certainly be keeping my own investment in the

Company after my retirement.

Although I regret that I am standing down from the Board

at a moment when the future management arrangements

are not settled, I am confident that a solution which will

benefit our shareholders will be found. While, as the

manager suggests, it is unrealistic to expect a growth rate

over the next ten years as strong as over the last, the Trust

is uniquely placed to take advantage of developments in

real estate markets, both direct and indirect.

The Board may have had a little influence on the Trust’s

success over the past decade, but the prime credit must

be given to the fund manager and his colleagues. They

have worked indefatigably on your behalf, with 

self-evident results. I am grateful to them, and to my 

Board colleagues over the years, who have made this 

such a pleasurable experience.I am pleased to announce

that our However, i
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no UK housebuilding shares. I put the chances of a

workable REIT sector being introduced in the UK at five to

one against in my statement last year. Subsequent events

have proved this to be far too pessimistic. Currently the

industry sentiment is probably closer to even money. Our

direct property portfolio performed in line with a direct

property benchmark but, with a 12.5% total return, was a

drag anchor on the Trust’s overall performance, and in

hindsight we should have sold more property in the

summer of 2003 and re-invested the proceeds in shares. 

There are two other matters, commented on in the

investment activity paragraphs, which I would like to

highlight. The first one is the low level of purchases and

sales in the year. Some fund managers, particularly those

who run hedge funds (which I do not) add value by

frenetic dealing activity. I rarely seem able to do this; my

investment habits are much more sluggish. If I have found

what I believe is a good investment I tend to give it a

chance to prove me right or wrong. We now publish a

monthly fact sheet which shareholders can access on our

website. Amongst other things, it lists our top ten equity

shareholdings. I sometimes worry that shareholders who

view this list must think the fund manager is asleep as the

list changes so infrequently. The second issue is this. By

inclination I prefer, where possible, to invest in smaller and

Manager’s Report

Chris Turner Fund Manager
3 June 2004

Introduction

Hindsight is a wonderful thing. We performed well last

year, but in retrospect I am annoyed that I underestimated

the continued strength of the market. Though we were

geared, I missed a great chance to improve performance

still further with additional debt. Nevertheless, we have no

reason to be unhappy with our predictions. Country

selection was good. The portfolio was consistently long of

UK assets throughout the year and, in total return terms,

UK property shares (+62%) outperformed every other

global property share market, save for Japan (+99%) and

Sweden (+63%). The portfolio was also consistently

uninvested or underweight in the most poorly performing

markets: Austria (+5%), Switzerland (+7%), Belgium

(+16%) and Germany (+17%). The portfolio was also

weighted towards retail property throughout the year and

again this worked out well as shops have continued to

show higher returns than offices or industrial property,

both in the UK and elsewhere. We held heavily overweight

positions in the three best performing Pan European

property shares over the period: Benchmark (+144%), St

Modwen (+110%) and Grainger Trust (+104%). The Big

Yellow, in which the Trust has a 12% holding, rose 93%.

I misjudged several situations. I did not expect house

prices to be so buoyant and, as a result, the portfolio held
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Manager’s Report continued

Offices

Offices are still the dullest sector due to high vacancy

rates and a lack of net tenant demand. In the London

market, where market trends often start, vacancy rates in

the City have risen to around 15% from 10% last March,

but in the West End the rate has fallen slightly to around

8% over the year. Underlying rents are not yet rising there

but the incentives offered by landlords to lease space are

diminishing and asking rents are being edged upwards.

On the Continent most office markets are virtually

moribund after seeing another increase in vacancy rates

last year. Paris has the lowest level of empty space (at

around 6.5%) but lettings are very hard work even there.

These markets may now be past their nadir in terms of the

fall in rental values and rise in vacancy levels, but I believe

the recovery in rents will take longer than many

commentators currently estimate, given the impact that

social legislation has on the pace of Continental

employment growth.

Retail Property

Consumer demand continues to defy the pessimists and

tenant demand, though patchy, appears to remain sturdy in

the larger inner city and out of town shopping centres. In

the UK, sales volumes have grown by 6.3% in the year to

end April 2004, while consumer spending has risen by

medium sized property companies rather than in larger

ones. Yet I must confess that, virtually throughout the year,

the Trust’s top seven equity investments have been the

seven largest property companies in our benchmark.

I comment further on these matters later in my report.

Property Market Background

A bird’s-eye view of European property markets today

shows very strong investor demand for commercial

property investments virtually everywhere. Housing

markets are strong west of the Rhine and on the

Mediterranean coast, but slack in Germany and in some

other northern European areas. Property investment yields

are falling slowly and capital values rising, gently in most

locations, though in the UK the pace of capital value

growth has quickened this spring, despite the increase in

borrowing costs. Private investors are active, making up an

estimated 10% of buyers in the UK in 2003 compared

with 2% in 2000. Here and across Europe property

companies and institutions, who were net sellers of direct

property in 2003, have turned to be net buyers. Good

quality investments are in short supply, particularly as the

development pipeline is producing only a trickle of fresh

stock. Despite the threat of further increases in borrowing

costs this year, I do not foresee any early end to this surge

of property investment demand.

Valuation Purchases Sales Appreciation/ Valuation

2003 Proceeds (Depreciation) 2004

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 %

Belgium 5,241 1,189 486 573 6,517 1.34 

Finland – 1,097 – 282 1,379 0.28

France 39,230 8,546 9,580 16,132 54,328 11.17

Germany 863 3,679 1,025 (77) 3,440 0.71

Italy 4,501 1,564 883 2,691 7,873 1.62

Netherlands 44,640 6,785 8,708 10,366 53,083 10.92

Spain 12,601 6,778 8,846 5,095 15,628 3.21

Sweden 11,107 2,393 2,191 6,434 17,743 3.65

Switzerland 2,779 – 816 363 2,326 0.48

Continental Europe 120,962 32,031 32,535 41,859 162,317 33.38

Direct Property 73,580 998 10,678 4,860 68,760 14.14

UK 163,636 27,746 37,095 100,902 255,189 52.48

Sub-Total 358,178 60,775 80,308 147,621 486,266 100.00

Other 967 – 967 – – –

Total 359,145 60,775 81,275 147,621 486,266 100.00

Changes in Investments
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3.8%. The idea is widespread that consumption growth

has been fuelled mainly by higher borrowing, often against

housing, but this may not be the whole story, as rising

household incomes and improved employment security are

also present. On the Continent consumer growth patterns

are much slacker and broadly reflect the state of the local

economies. Aside from the state of tenant demand, retail

property continues to offer greater opportunities for

income improvement through active management and

centre extension, and, being generally subject to much

tighter planning controls than offices or warehousing,

offers more defence against future development.

Residential Property

I am concerned that the current rate of increase in house

prices will lead to a painful price reversal at some date in

the not too distant future. But, if I am wrong, I still prefer

to keep the Trust’s assets as modestly invested in the

residential market as possible, as commercial property

looks so much better value on a price per square foot

basis. Going back twenty years, trends in commercial and

residential property values used to be very similar. Since

1998 this trend has been completely broken: UK

commercial property values have risen by an average of

about 25% while house prices have more than doubled.

Across the country commercial property and potential

commercial development sites are being siphoned off for

brown-field residential development, reducing the actual

and potential commercial stock and turning many

commercial property investments into deferred housing

sites. The reduction in the commercial stock will only serve

to increase the future pace of rental growth as the

economy grows.

Property Share Background

UK property shares had an outstanding year. Asset values

rose, contrary to analysts’ earlier forecasts, as yields fell in

the property investment market. Two major takeover bids –

for Canary Wharf and Chelsfield – ran through most of the

year and acted as a reminder that some investors, unable

to satisfy their demand for property in the direct property

market, were prepared to make cash offers for companies

standing at a discount to asset value on the stock market.

Equally important was the progress made towards the

introduction of Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) in

the UK, which I comment on below. All these factors

served to produce a dramatic drop in the average discount

to net asset value of the sector from around 40% at

March 2003 to 18% at March 2004. On the Continent

property shares did well, but the total returns were lower

partly because the discounts to asset value were narrower

at the start of the year. 

UK REITs

In my interim statement I commented at length on the

background to UK REITs and the potentially beneficial

effects this might have on the UK property share market.

In March the Government issued a consultation

Manager’s Report continued

Investment Portfolio as at 31 March 2004

Market
Value
£’000

Land Securities 42,533 

British Land 27,079 

Hammerson 25,160 

Rodamco Europe (Netherlands) 20,822 

Unibail (France) 20,461 

Slough Estates 19,690 

Liberty International 18,792 

St Modwen Properties 18,758 

Big Yellow Group 16,038 

Castellum (Sweden) 15,628 

Corio (Netherlands) 10,459 

Grainger Trust 9,490 

Gecina (France) 9,172 

Eurocommercial Properties (Netherlands) 8,557 

Market
Value
£’000

Klepierre (France) 8,459 

Ashtenne Holdings 7,739 

Metrovacesa (Spain) 7,256 

Pillar Property Group 6,090 

Quintain Estates & Developments 5,525 

Silic (France) 5,287 

Helical Bar 5,139 

Cofinimmo (Belgium) 5,122 

Chelsfield 5,056 

Capital & Regional 4,975 

Vastned Retail (Netherlands) 4,793 

Beni Stabili (Italy) 4,751 

Inmobiliaria Colonial (Spain) 4,481 

Market
Value
£’000

Wereldhave (Netherlands) 4,423 

Canary Wharf Group 4,358 

London Merchant 4,081 

Brixton 4,043 

Rugby Estates 3,679 

NHP 3,537 

Fonciere Lyonnaise (France) 3,354 

Bail Investissement (France) 3,180 

Pirelli Real Estate (Italy) 3,122 

Derwent Valley 2,892 

Development Securities 2,674 

IVG Immobilien (Germany) 2,406 

PSP Swiss Property (Switzerland) 2,326 

The 40 largest quoted investments amount to £381,387,000 or 78% of total investments (convertibles and all classes of equity in any one company being treated as

one investment).
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0.4%
Unquoted
investments

84.7%
Equities

14.1%
Investment
properties

0.8%
Convertibles

as at 31 March 2004

Manager’s Report continued

Classification of Investments

as at 31 March 2004 2004 2003 2003 

£’000 % £’000 %

Equities 411,623 84.7 279,757 77.9

Convertibles 3,957 0.8 3,220 0.9

Fixed interest 22 – 22 –

Unquoted investments 1,904 0.4 1,599 0.4

Investment properties 68,760 14.1 73,580 20.5

Total market value

of fixed assets 486,266 100.0 358,178 99.7

Secured loans to unquoteds – – 967 0.3

Total investments 486,266 100.0 359,145 100.0

document entitled “Promoting more flexible investment in

property”, through the creation of a new investment

vehicle dubbed a “Property Investment Fund” or “PIF” for

short. The paper does not set out the Government’s

preferred options, but rather raises a host of questions to

which the property industry is invited to comment by mid

July. The present expectation is that these responses will

be considered through the autumn and that the

Government will publish its findings, and the framework

of any proposals, with the Chancellor’s November

statement. Any proposed legislation is expected to be

announced in the 2005 Budget.

Investment Activity and Distribution of Assets

Changes made to the portfolio last year were fewer than

usual. Leaving aside share repurchases, investment

turnover (purchases plus sales divided by two) totalled

only £70m in the year or less than 20% of the average

capital under management. The comparable figure for the

previous year was 35%. The portfolio’s total appreciation

was £148m and the break-down is shown on the table on

page 9. We used approximately £48m of the £148m to

buy-back shares, spent £4m on capitalising part of our

interest and management fees and in paying the

performance fee. The remaining £96m was added to

shareholders’ funds. 

Reflecting the low investment turnover, the distribution of

assets also showed only a modest change over the year

(see the table on page 15). The biggest change, in

percentage terms, was the direct property section, which

dropped from 20.5% to 14.1% as a result of sales and

relative performance. My general target distribution for the

portfolio remains at 35% to 55% in UK equities, 35% to

55% in Continental equities and 10% to 30% in UK

direct property. Comparing these targets with the current

actual numbers shows that I am unusually underweight in

the Continent and close to breaching the top target level

in the UK equity market. This reflects my belief that UK

property stocks are likely to continue to outperform

Continental stocks. Better economic growth here will

provide UK property companies with more opportunities

for profitable investment. A successful introduction of tax

transparent property vehicles in the UK, if this happens,

should boost prices; and if this does not happen then

corporate activity could well re-emerge to support the

sector not far below current price levels. 

The see-through spread of the Trust’s assets is on page

13. The table shows the geographic location of property

represented in each of our equity and direct property

holdings. This is calculated by analysing the underlying

spread of the portfolios of each company in which we

invest and attributing to the Trust the relevant percentage

of the properties based on the percentage of the equity of

each company owned. The table also shows the see-

through portfolio for our benchmark index. One objective

of my investment activity through 2003 was to decrease

the see-through weighting in offices and increase the

weighting in retail. Though many commentators now

believe offices to have greater growth potential than retail

through the next two years, I am not convinced that this is

correct and am content to remain with our current

weightings for the present. 
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Manager’s Report continued

Largest Equity Investments

Shareholders will find comments on the activity, yield and

performance of our top twenty investments set out on

pages 16 and 17. The list remains very similar to last year

and has served us well through the period. 

Shareholders should know that by inclination I prefer small

and medium sized property companies to large ones when

making investments. Unlike their counterparts in most

other industries, large property companies have little

economic advantage compared to their smaller brethren,

and what they gain from marginally cheaper borrowing

costs is, in my view, more than lost in bureaucracy and in

their inability to find sufficient large scale investment

opportunities to create high returns on capital. There are a

few notable exceptions, but generally I find that the best

managements in the industry are likely to be found

running and, very often, owning significant shareholdings,

in smaller companies.

Having said this I must now admit that the current top

seven of our equity investments are the seven largest

property companies in the UK and Europe. There are

several reasons for this. Major shopping centres, which

I am keen to hold on a see-through basis, tend, because

of their size, only to be owned by large investment

companies. At the start of an economic upturn, which is

where I hope we are, the development opportunities, on

which smaller companies thrive, are few and far between

as there is too much empty space in standing property to

give a fair risk and reward for new construction in the

office and industrial markets. Lastly, if tax transparent

companies are successfully introduced in the UK, I believe

the large companies will be the first to transfer into the

new regime and I hope that this will benefit their share

prices as it has in France where discounts to asset value

have virtually disappeared.

Revenue

The revenue earnings per share rose by only 9.1%, which

was less than we expected, particularly after the increase

of 24.5% in our revenue per share in the first half of the

year. One major reason (and one that pinpoints how little

control we have over some of our income) was that the

ex-dividend dates for two of our largest final dividend

payments, from St Modwen and Hammerson, moved from

the end of March into early April, reducing the Trust’s

dividend income in the year by just over £700,000,

equivalent to 0.20p per share. If these ex-dividend dates

return to late March in 2005 then the Trust will receive

two final dividends in the current financial year, but we 

are not budgeting for such an event. Another reason for

the slower rate of earnings growth was the reduction in

rental income from our Piccadilly and Battersea properties,

which we have partially emptied in preparation for

redevelopment. Battersea is now under offer for sale 

as a residential development site and at Piccadilly we 

have selected a funding partner to manage and finance

the redevelopment.

Next year the accounts will be prepared under the new

International Financial Reporting Standards. These are still

under discussion with the standard setting bodies but

there are likely to be significant changes to the

presentation and content of the accounts. We will report

further at the interim stage by which time more details of

the impact should be known.

Gearing and Debenture Debt

As the Chairman notes, the Trust’s net debt rose by 72%

from £47m to £81m over the year, but the increase in the

gearing was only from 15% to 20% thanks to the

substantial increase in the value of the Trust’s assets.

Shareholders should note that some £40m of our present

debt is in the form of two debentures with coupons of

8.125% and 11.5% repayable in 2008 and 2016

respectively. The market value of this debenture debt was

£48.6m at the year end. This additional £8.6m represents

a negative value equivalent to 2.40p per share (same as

last year), which is not currently taken into the balance

sheet or the asset value calculation. Later this year the

rules are likely to change and this negative sum will be

included in our published numbers. The remainder of

our debt is in the form of variable rate bank loans linked

to LIBOR.

The portfolio’s see-through gearing, which takes account

of our own debt and adds in the proportionate debt of all

our equity investments, has risen from around 75% at

March 2003 to a current level of approximately 100%.
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Manager’s Report continued

Direct Property Portfolio

The Trust’s direct property portfolio is focused on office

and industrial properties in Greater London and the

South of England. We own no stand alone retail. This

apparent contradiction with our view that retail property

offers superior returns is easily explained. The best retail

returns have been generated by retail parks and

shopping centres. These are generally large assets,

which are not appropriate for the Trust given the size of

its direct property portfolio. We continue to gain full retail

exposure through our quoted investments.

The portfolio is dominated by properties requiring active

asset management. This year saw us progress plans for

the redevelopment of Piccadilly and Battersea. A

consequence of this is that a large proportion of our

property income is secured on leases with short periods

to expiry. 

The Trust’s direct property portfolio produced a total

return of 12.5% over the year. The income return was

4.8% together with a 7.7% capital appreciation. This

performance matched the IPD Annual Index total return

(extrapolated to March 2004). 

Direct property’s performance was significantly inferior to

property equities and the Trust continued to reduce its

exposure to direct property by completing four sales

whilst making no purchases. All sales were at or above

the previous year end’s independent valuation. In the

case of the office building at Southampton, the sale

price (£5.165m) was 29% ahead of the March 2003

valuation and reflected the swift reletting of the ground

floor (to a Government department) which was

refurbished and returned to us as part of the lease

regearing with the existing tenant,

PricewaterhouseCoopers. The other sales were the small

industrial units at Swanley and Addlestone and our

business centre at Tavern Quay in Docklands. These

sales totalled £5.42m, an average of 6.5% ahead of the

previous year end’s valuation. The sale of the business

centre followed the successful disposal last year of the

adjacent over-spill car park (which had permission for 12

residential units).

Benchmark TR Property

UK

City Offices 6.7 6.2

West End Offices 5.8 6.9

West End Retail 1.7 2.7

Docklands 4.0 2.0

GLC/SE Offices 1.4 3.4

Provincial Offices 0.7 0.7

In Town Retail 8.8 11.0

Supermarkets 1.7 1.7

Retail Warehouses 5.4 6.1

Out of Town Retail 4.6 6.8

SE Industrials 3.7 5.3

Other Industrials 1.1 2.6

Leisure 0.7 0.8

Residential 2.2 3.9

Other 1.7 1.9

Total UK 50.2 62.0

Non UK

Austria 1.3 –

Belgium 3.7 2.0

Denmark 0.1 –

Finland 0.5 0.1

French Retail 5.5 5.6

French Offices 8.8 6.7

French Residential 1.0 1.1

French Other 1.5 0.7

Germany 2.2 1.3

Ireland 0.1 0.1

Italy 3.9 3.7

Netherlands Business Space 1.9 1.0

Netherlands Retail 2.1 2.2

Netherlands Residential 0.2 0.1

Spain 5.2 4.9

Sweden 6.8 5.9

Switzerland 2.3 0.6

USA 1.5 1.3

Elsewhere 1.2 0.7

Total 100.0 100.0

Summary

Offices 46.0 35.8

Retail 35.3 41.9

Industrial 8.0 10.9

Residential 6.2 7.2

Other 4.5 4.2

See-Through Portfolio by Market (%)*

*Combines the underlying property from the Trust‘s shareholdings and direct
property holdings.
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Manager’s Report continued

At 198-202 Piccadilly, the outstanding conditions

attached to the planning consent have been satisfied and

we have been able to complete conditional negotiations

with the freeholder, the Crown Estate, for a new ground-

lease. The Trust does not take on development or

construction risk and we have agreed, in principle, funding

with a major UK institutional investor as a first step

towards a sale. The new ground-lease with the Crown

Estate is conditional on this funding. 

Following the same strategy as at Piccadilly, we are

seeking to sell the business centre at Battersea having

completed the protracted (but ultimately successful)

planning application for a mixed use scheme. Following

a comprehensive marketing campaign, terms were

agreed with a residential developer in March and the

sale is progressing.

At the Colonnades in Bayswater, the conversion of

3,600 ft of surplus storage space into air-conditioned

offices with a new access was completed a month after

the year end. Letting conditions are improving in this

submarket and marketing has commenced.

Aside from voids at Piccadilly and Battersea (due to steps

we have taken to prepare the properties for

redevelopment), the only significant void in the portfolio is

the 36,000 ft warehouse at Swindon. We have been

drawing rent against a bank guarantee since the original

tenant, Optical Micro Devices, was put into administration

in June 2002. This guarantee is due to expire in June this

year. We have also settled our claim for loss of future rent

and dilapidations with the Receiver at a figure of

£187,000, which equates to a further 11 months’ rent

based on the current ERV. The property continues to be

marketed for sale or for let.

The direct property portfolio at the year end constituted

14.1% of the gross assets of the Trust. The current sales

comprise approximately 40% of the direct property portfolio. 

Unquoted Investments

We made no investments in unquoted companies during

the year. Controlrun, a joint venture that owns petrol filling

stations, remains our only investment in this area. Sales of

all the assets owned by the business, planned last year,

have now been completed at prices ahead of recent

valuations and we expect to exit the joint venture during

the current year.

Outlook

We enter the new financial year holding the portfolio

positions that served us well last year – overweight UK

and retail property and underweight mainland Europe,

offices and residential. I can see no immediate reason to

alter these positions. Despite the value gains of 2003,

commercial property still offers an income return that is

higher than other asset classes. If the pace of economic

growth continues to improve the early signs of improved

tenant demand should become more obvious, giving a

further stimulus to asset values. Rising bond yields will

make us more wary, but property markets can continue to

perform well in a rising interest rate environment provided

the economy does not falter. The possibility that a sensible

REIT structure might emerge continues to add spice to

share prices in the UK property sector. 
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Europe 33.4%

UK Securities 
and Loans 52.5%

UK Property 14.1%

as at 31 March 2004

Total
Overseas: 33.4%

Total
United Kingdom: 66.6%

Distribution of Investments

as at 31 March 2004 2004 2003 2003

£’000 % £’000 %

UK Securities – quoted 253,285 52.1 162,037 45.1

UK Securities – unquoted 1,904 0.4 1,599 0.4

UK Investment properties 68,760 14.1 73,580 20.5

UK Total 323,949 66.6 237,216 66.0

Europe 162,317 33.4 120,962 33.7

Market value of fixed assets 486,266 100.0 358,178 99.7

Secured loans to unquoteds – – 967 0.3

Total investments 486,266 100.0 359,145 100.0

as at 31 March 2004
Office and Industrial and 
mixed use Retail business space Residential Total

West End of London 53.5 – – – 53.5

City of London – – – – –

Around the M25 12.9 – 17.7 – 30.6

Other South East – – 2.0 – 2.0

Remainder of UK 10.6 – – 3.3 13.9

Total 77.0 – 19.7 3.3 100.0

Spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value (%)

Portfolio Summary

as at 31 March 2004 Gross rental income

less than 1 year (including voids) 43%

1 to 3 years 3%

4 to 5 years 13%

6 to 10 years 2%

11 to 15 years 26%

Over 15 years 13%

Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfolio

as at 31 March

2004 2003 2002

Total investments £486m £359m £428m

Net assets £401m £304m £342m

UK quoted property shares 52% 45% 51%

Overseas quoted property stocks 33% 34% 29%

Direct property

(externally valued) 14% 20% 19%

Unquoted investments 
(including loans) 1% 1% 1%

Manager’s Report continued
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Value (£m) 
% of Gross Assets
% of equity owned
Share price at Comment 
31 March 2004 Note: Market caps, yields and share price returns all at end March 2004.

1. Land Securities £42.5m Europe’s largest quoted property company by market capitalisation, with an all
(UK) 8.7% UK portfolio concentrated on shopping centres and retail parks (53% of assets)

0.8% and Central London offices (30%). Continues to expand its business in
1090p property outsourcing and facilities management. Market cap £5,070m. Gearing

is 40%. In FTSE 100 Index. Yield 3.4%. Five year share price total return of 66%.

2. British Land £27.1m Europe’s largest quoted property company measured by gross assets, with
(UK) 5.6% an all UK portfolio concentrated on City of London offices (34%) and retail 

0.8% property (52%). Gearing is around 105%. Market cap £3,210m. In FTSE 
653p 100 Index. Yield 2.1%. Five year share price total return of 41%.

3. Hammerson £25.2m Based in London, the company’s investment and development business is
(UK) 5.2% split between the UK and France. 50% of the assets are UK shopping

1.3% centres and retail parks, London offices are 20%, Paris shopping 17% and 
680p Paris offices 12% of the portfolio. Gearing is 70%. Net yield 2.5%. Five year 

share price total return of 89%.

4. Rodamco Europe £20.8m This Dutch based tax transparent company is the largest quoted property 
(Netherlands) 4.3% company in the Eurozone. It owns a portfolio of high quality shopping centres

0.7% mainly located in Holland, France, Spain and Sweden and is investing in
d51.90 Eastern Europe. Gearing is 54%. Gross yield 5.5%. Share price total return of

60% since flotation in September 1999.

5. Unibail £20.5m The largest French quoted property company with an all French portfolio
(France) 4.2% comprising Paris offices (57%), regional shopping centres (36%) and

0.8% exhibition space (7%). Took tax-free status during last year and raised
d85.00 dividend threefold. Gross yield 4.1%. Gearing is 82%. Five year share price

total return of 153%.

6. Slough Estates £19.7m Slough Estates is an industrial and business park office owner with a portfolio
(UK) 4.1% located principally in the UK at Slough and along the M4 corridor. Slough

1.1% also develops and invests on the Continent and in the USA. Net yield 3.3%.
448p Gearing is 72%. Five year share price total return of 42%.

7. Liberty International £18.8m London based investment company specialising in ownership and management
(UK) 3.9% of major shopping centres including the Lakeside Centre at Thurrock, 

0.8% MetroCentre at Gateshead, and Braehead outside Glasgow. In FTSE 100 Index.
767p Gearing is 65%. Net yield 3.3%. Five year share price total return of 118%.

8. St Modwen Properties £18.8m This Birmingham based investment and development company now operates
(UK) 3.9% nationwide specialising in the rejuvenation of tired retail property and in the

5.1% rehabilitation of brownfield sites. Recent purchases include part of the
305p Llanwern Steel Works in South Wales and the Elephant and Castle Shopping

Centre in Southwark. Gearing is 105%. Net yield 2.2%. Five year share price
total return of 345%.

9. Big Yellow Group £16.0m A specialist owner and operator of self-storage centres operating primarily in
(UK) 3.3% London and the South East. The current 29 operational sites are expected to

12.1% increase to 50 by 2007. Big Yellow was cash flow positive in 2003 and into
132p pre-tax profitability in 2004. Net yield 0.8%. Market cap £137m. Share price

total return of 365% since the Trust’s investment as a start-up in September
1998.

10. Castellum £15.6m Based in Gothenburg, Castellum owns a higher yielding mixed commercial 
(Sweden) 3.2% portfolio of some 500 properties located in Central and Southern Sweden.

2.7% Market cap £560m. Gross yield 4.7%. Gearing is 107%. Five year share
SK180.50 price total return of 208%.

Twenty Largest Equity Investments
The twenty largest equity investments (convertibles and all classes of equity in any one company being treated as one investment) were 

as follows:
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Value (£m) 
% of Gross Assets
% of equity owned
Share price at Comment 
31 March 2004 Note: Market caps, yields and share price returns all at end March 2004.

11. Corio £10.5m This Dutch based tax transparent company owns retail and office property in
(Netherlands) 2.2% Holland (56% of gross assets), France (24%), Italy (12%) and Spain (8%).

0.7% By use the portfolio is 80% retail and the remainder mainly Dutch offices.
d35.96 Gross yield 6.4%. Gearing is 70%. Five year share price total return of 86%.

12. Grainger Trust £9.5m This is the Trust’s largest investment in the UK housing market. Grainger Trust
(UK) 2.0% owns a nationwide portfolio of some 12,000 houses and flats most let on old

2.0% regulated tenancies. These properties are usually resold when the tenancies
1898p end. Gearing is around 125%. Net yield 0.9%. Five year share price total

return of 388%.

13. Gecina £9.2m Gecina is now the second largest French property company and has an
(France) 1.9% investment portfolio centred on Paris and split 54% in offices and 46% in let

0.4% residential. The company adopted tax-free status during 2003. Gross yield 
d63.80 3.8%. Gearing is around 75%. Five year share price total return of 45%.

14. Eurocommercial Properties £8.6m Eurocommercial is a Dutch based tax transparent company specialising in
(Netherlands) 1.8% shopping centre ownership and management across Europe. The portfolio

1.7% split is 43% Italy, 34% France, 13% Sweden and 8% Holland. Gearing is
d24.85 60%. Gross yield 6.2%. Five year share price total return of 78%.

15. Klepierre £8.5m Klepierre, which is majority owned by BNP Paribas, is a specialist Paris
(France) 1.7% based shopping centre owner and developer. The company has recently

0.5% bought a large number of small malls from Carrefour. The portfolio is 68% in
d56.23 France with the rest mainly in Spain and Italy. Gearing is 120%. Gross yield

3.6%. Five year share price total return of 148%.

16. Ashtenne Holdings £7.7m A UK based owner of higher yielding industrial and office space with a
(UK) 1.6 % growing fund management arm. The company has a strong track record of 

3.0% entrepreneurial investment management and has recently diversified onto the
363p Continent. Net yield 2.6%. Gearing is currently around 30%. Five year share

price total return of 215%.

17. Metrovacesa £7.3m The merger of Metrovacesa and Bami in November 2003 created Spain’s
(Spain) 1.5% largest quoted property company. Based in Madrid the business includes

0.6% investment property ownership (60%), homebuilding and other development 
d30.40 activities (40%). Gearing is around 90%. Gross yield 3.3%. Five year share

price total return of 91%.

18. Pillar Property Group £6.1m Based in London, Pillar specialises in the development and ownership of 
(UK) 1.3% retail warehouse property and acts as fund manager for the largest specialist

1.0% fund in this sector of the market. Pillar has recently expanded its activities
580p onto the Continent. Net yield 1.5%. Five year share price total return of 114%.

19. Quintain Estates £5.5m A London based investment company with several potentially very rewarding
(UK) 1.1% development sites in the capital – particularly at the former Dome site at 

1.0% Greenwich and around Wembley Stadium. Gearing is around 65%. Net yield
425p 1.9%. Five year share price total return of 182%.

20. Silic £5.3m This Paris based business specialises in owning and developing office and
(France) 1.1% storage property in suburban Paris and owns 2 large business park

0.8% estates close to Orly and Charles de Gaulle airports. Silic adopted tax-free
d58.58 status during 2003. Gross yield 5.0%. Gearing is 30%. Five year share price

total return of 130%.

Five year share price total returns are from Datastream using the period ended 31 March 2004 expressed in local currency.

Twenty Largest Equity Investments continued
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Investment Properties as at 31 March 2004

Value in excess of £5 million
Property Sector Tenure Size (sq ft) Principal tenants

198/202 Piccadilly and West End Offices Leasehold Offices 37,000 Various
32/34 Jermyn Street and Retail 84 years from 1949 Retail 28,000 Boots the Chemist
London W1 
The Group’s largest direct property investment is located on the south side of Piccadilly adjacent to the Waterstones bookstore. The
outstanding conditions attached to the planning consent have been satisfied. Conditional negotiations with the freeholder, the
Crown Estate, for a new groundlease have also been completed. Funding of the scheme has been agreed in principle and the new
groundlease is conditional on this funding. These agreements are in solicitors’ hands.

Elizabeth House Offices Freehold 54,150 Gallaher
Duke Street
Woking
Located in the centre of Woking, the building is let for 99 years from 1982 with five yearly upwards only rent reviews to
approximately two-thirds of rental value. The rent increased marginally on review. The property is sublet to TM Group plc until
2023.

The Colonnades Mixed Freehold 44,000 NCP; Pizza Express
Bishops Bridge Road Use 200 space car park Scottish & Newcastle
London W2 242 residential units Bishops Stores Ltd
The property comprises a large mixed-use block in Bayswater, constructed in the mid-1970s. The conversion of 7,700 sq ft of
storage space into air-conditioned offices will be completed shortly after the year end. Marketing will commence thereafter. We
continue to negotiate lease extensions with residential tenants, most of whom now have significantly less than 70 years until expiry.

Cambridge Science Park Offices Leasehold 38,500 Worldpay Ltd
Cambridge 125 years from 1987
Acquired in February 2001, this property was built in 1989 and extensively refurbished in 2000. The tenant, Worldpay Limited, who
occupies by way of a 15 year lease from December 2000, has recently been acquired by The Royal Bank of Scotland.
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Investment Properties as at 31 March 2004 continued

Value below £5 million
Property Sector Tenure Size (sq ft) Principal tenants

Unit 3 Industrial Freehold 38,249
Interface Business Park 
Wootton Bassett
The tenant, Optical Micro Devices Ltd, went into administration in June 2002. The rental guarantee expires in June 2004. The
Administrative Receiver has settled our Statement of Claim. The Group received the equivalent of a further 11 months’ rent. The
property continues to be marketed for sale or let.

Locke King House Offices Freehold 5,250 Junction 11 Advertising
Balfour Road Lattice Semiconductor
Weybridge UK Ltd
This converted cottage hospital was purchased in early 1997. It is let to 2 tenants (one of whom has sublet at a rent in excess of
the passing rent) and the property has an excellent parking ratio (a rarity in Weybridge).

Ferrier Street Industrial Industrial Freehold 38,500 Wandsworth Borough
Estate, Ferrier Street Council
Wandsworth SW18 
Let to Wandsworth Borough Council at 80% of open market value. This estate is fully sublet to 14 tenants. The Council has an
option to take another 25 year lease in 2008. Rent review completed. The third party determination found entirely in our favour at
our recommended rent.

Value in excess of £5 million continued

Property Sector Tenure Size (sq ft) Principal tenants

Southbank Commercial Centre Light Industrial Freehold 49,000 Various
Battersea Park Road and Offices
London SW11
Having gained consent for a mixed residential and commercial scheme at the end of 2002, we delayed the marketing of this site
into 2004 as we awaited the stabilisation of the Central London residential market. Terms were agreed in March with a developer
and the sale is progressing.
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Caroline Burton, age 54, was Managing

Director of Guardian Asset Management from

1987 to 1999 and a Director of Guardian

Royal Exchange from 1990 to 1999. She

joined the Board of TRPIT in June 2002. She

is also a non-executive director of Rathbone

Brothers plc and of Martin Currie Japan

Investment Trust plc.

Chris Turner, age 58, has been the Fund

Manager since 1995, when he joined

Henderson following a career in the City as a

property share analyst. He qualified as a

Chartered Surveyor in 1970.

Jo Elliott, age 42, qualified with Ernst &

Young, became an investment analyst with

Heron Corporation plc and then Corporate

Finance Manager with SPP. LET prior to

joining Henderson in 1995. She is finance

manager for the TR Property Group.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, age 36, qualified as

a Chartered Surveyor in 1992. He joined

Henderson in January 1997 from Knight

Frank where he was an Associate Partner in

fund management. He is the Deputy Fund

Manager.

James Wilkinson, age 31, qualified as a

Chartered Surveyor in 1998. He joined

Henderson in October 2002 from Healey and

Baker Investment Managers where he was an

Associate Partner. He specialises in direct

property investment.

Mark Vickery, age 29, joined Henderson in

December 2000 as an account manager in

the Corporate Affairs department. He is a

graduate of Anglia University with a degree in

European Business Economics and French.

John Ellman-Brown, age 46, has been the

appointed representative of the Corporate

Company Secretary, Henderson Secretarial

Services Limited, since joining Henderson

in 2001.

Alastair Ross Goobey, age 58, joined the

Board of TRPIT in 1994 and was appointed

Chairman on 1 January 2002. He is Deputy

Chairman designate of GWR Group plc, a

Governor of The Wellcome Trust and

President of the Investment Property Forum.

He was, until 31 December 2001, Chief

Executive of Hermes Pensions Management

Limited. He will be retiring as Chairman 

and from the Board following the AGM on

26 July 2004.

Jeremy Newsum, age 49, is Group Chief

Executive of Grosvenor and a Trustee of the

Grosvenor Trusts. He is a Director of Sonae

Imobiliária (Portugal). He was President of the

British Property Federation for the year

2001/2002, a member of the Assets

Committee of the Church Commissioners

from 1993-2000 and a Director of the

French quoted property company, Société

Foncière Lyonnaise, from 1997-2002.

He joined the Board of TRPIT in 2002.

Peter Salsbury, age 54, retired in 2000 as

Chief Executive of Marks and Spencer p.l.c. He

now has a Management Consultancy practice

specialising in Executive Coaching. Additionally

he serves on the Council and Strategy

Committee of City and Guilds, and the Council

and Board of the Institute of Employment

Studies. During his 10 years on the Board at

M&S his responsibilities included Commercial

Estates, Retail Operations, H.R. as well as

Sales and Marketing. He also served on the

Board of M&S Financial Services for 5 years.

From 1992 until 1995 he was a Director of

NORWEB plc. He joined the Board of TRPIT in

1997, and will succeed as Chairman following

the AGM on 26 July 2004.

Directors continued

All directors are independent of the manager and are members of the Audit Committee.

Richard Stone, age 61, was Deputy Chairman

of Coopers and Lybrand (C&L) in 1998 and a

member of the Global Board of

PricewaterhouseCoopers until he joined the

Board of TRPIT in 2000. He headed up C&L’s

Corporate Finance Practice in the UK and was

also an Insolvency Practitioner. He is Chairman

of Shearings Group Limited and a non-

executive director of Halma plc, British Nuclear

Fuels plc and Gartmore Global Trust PLC. He is

Chairman of the TRPIT Audit Committee.
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Introduction
This report is submitted in accordance with the Directors’
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2004. 

Consideration by the Directors of Matters relating to
Directors’ Remuneration
The Board as a whole considers directors’ remuneration.
Accordingly a committee to consider matters relating to
directors’ remuneration has not been appointed. The Board
has not been provided with advice or services by any person
in respect of its consideration of directors’ remuneration. 

Statement of the Company’s Policy on Directors’
Remuneration
The Board consists entirely of non-executive directors, who
are appointed with the expectation that they will serve for a
period of three years. Directors’ appointments are reviewed
formally every three years thereafter by the Board as a
whole. None of the directors has a contract of service and a
director may resign by notice in writing to the Board at any
time; there are no notice periods. The Company’s policy is
for the directors to be remunerated in the form of fees,
payable quarterly in arrears, to the director personally or to a
third party specified by that director. There are no long term

incentive schemes, share option schemes or pension
arrangements and the fees are not specifically related to
the directors’ performance, either individually or collectively.

The Company’s policy is that the fees payable to the
directors should reflect the time spent by the Board on
the Company’s affairs and the responsibilities borne by
the directors and should be sufficient to enable
candidates of high calibre to be recruited. The policy is for
the Chairman of the Board to be paid higher fees than the
other directors in recognition of his more onerous role.

For the year ended 31 March 2004, directors’ fees were paid
at the annual rates of Chairman: £25,000 (2003: £25,000)
and Directors: £15,000 (2003: £15,000). The policy is to
review these rates annually in light of the fees paid to the
Boards of other investment trust companies, although such
review will not necessarily result in any change to the rates.
The actual amounts paid to the directors during the financial
year under review are as shown in the box opposite.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance cover is held by
the Company in respect of the directors.

Performance Graph

By order of the Board

J S Ellman-Brown ACIS
For and on behalf of 
Henderson Secretarial Services Limited 
Secretary
3 June 2004

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Amount of each Director’s emoluments (audited)

The fees payable in respect of each of the directors who
served during the financial year were as follows:

31 March 31 March
2004 2003

£ £
A Ross Goobey 25,000 25,000
R R St J Barkshire(1) – 4,777
C M Burton 15,000 12,308
R W Carey(1) – 4,777
J H M Newsum 15,000 12,308
P L Salsbury 15,000 15,000
R A Stone 15,000 15,000

TOTAL 85,000 89,170

Notes:
(1) Mr Barkshire and Mr Carey retired from the Board on 25 July 2002.

No other remuneration, compensation or expenses were
paid or payable by the Company during the year to any of
the current or former directors.

Mr Newsum’s fees are paid to Grosvenor Investments
Limited. The amount so paid was £15,000 + VAT (2003:
£12,308 + VAT).

TR Property share price total return, assuming the  
investment of £1,000 on 31 March 1999 and the  
reinvestment of all dividends (excluding dealing expenses)  
(Source: AITC Services Limited).

 

Mar
1999

Mar
2000

Mar
2001

Mar
2002

Mar
2003

Mar
2004

S&P/Citigroup European Property Index total return, assuming the
notional investment of £1,000 into the Index on 31 March  
1999 and the reinvestment of all income (excluding  
dealing expenses)  (Source: Datastream). This is selected 
as it is the Company’s benchmark index.

£500

£1,000

£1,500

£2,000

£2,500

£3,000
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Property Valuation

Valuations of all the Group's properties as at 31 March

2004 have been carried out by external independent

valuers. These valuations have been adopted in the

accounts. Details of the valuers and changes in fixed

assets are shown in notes 11 and 12 to the accounts.

Directors’ Remuneration

A report on directors’ remuneration is set out on page 22.

Directors

The names and biographies of the directors holding office

at the date of this report are listed on page 21. All these

directors served throughout the year.

The Articles of Association require that every director

retires by rotation at least every three years. They may

then offer themselves for re-election. The director 

retiring by rotation at the forthcoming AGM is 

Mr R A Stone who, being eligible, offers himself for

re-election. 

The interests of the directors in the ordinary shares of the

Company at the beginning and end of the year are shown

in the table above. All interests are beneficial. There have

been no changes in the directors' interests in the ordinary

shares between the end of the financial year and the date

of this report.

There were no contracts subsisting during or at the end of

the year in which a director of the Company is or was

materially interested and which is or was significant in

relation to the Company's business.

No director has a service contract with the Company. 

Payment of Suppliers

It is the Company's payment policy for the current financial

Report of the Directors

The directors present the audited accounts of the Group

and their report for the year ended 31 March 2004. The

Group comprises TR Property Investment Trust plc (“the

Company”) and a number of subsidiaries. 

Status, Principal Activities and Business Review

The Company is an investment company, as defined in

Section 266 of the Companies Act 1985, and operates as

an investment trust in accordance with Section 842 of the

Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988. It is required to

seek Inland Revenue approval of its status as an

investment trust under the above-mentioned Section 842

every year, and this approval will continue to be sought.

Inland Revenue approval of the Company’s status as an

investment trust has been received in respect of the year

ended 31 March 2003. The directors are of the opinion

that the Company has subsequently conducted its affairs

in a manner which will enable it to continue to gain such

approval. The Company has no employees and the 'close

company' provisions do not apply.

A review of the business is given in the Chairman's

Statement on pages 4 to 7 and the Manager's Report on

pages 8 to 15.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) will be held on

Monday 26 July 2004 at 12 noon. The Notice of Meeting

is set out on page 47 and an explanation of the business

to be conducted is given on page 48.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 1.10p per share was paid on

7 January 2004.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend

of 1.40p per share. Subject to approval at the AGM, the

dividend will be paid on 30 July 2004 to shareholders on

the register at 2 July 2004. The shares will be quoted ex-

dividend from 30 June 2004. 

The total dividend for the year is, therefore, 2.50p per share.

Investments

The net asset value per share, after deducting prior charges at

par, was 113.07p compared with the net asset value per share

of 73.02p on 31 March 2003. Details of the investments are

shown within the Manager's Report on pages 8 to 15.

Ordinary Shares of 25p

31 March 1 April

2004 2003

C M Burton 22,000 –

J H M Newsum 5,154 –

A Ross Goobey 57,996 57,996

P L Salsbury 25,000 10,000

R A Stone 30,000 30,000

Directors' Interests in Shares 
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year to obtain the best possible terms for all business. The

Company agrees with its suppliers the terms on which

business will take place and it abides by these terms.

There were no trade creditors at 31 March 2004.

Manager and Company Secretary

Investment management, accounting, secretarial,

administrative and UK custodial services are provided to

the Group by wholly owned subsidiary companies of

Henderson Global Investors (Holdings) plc (“Henderson”)

and by BNP Paribas Fund Services UK Limited (formerly

Cogent Investment Operations Limited).

Following the decision by Chris Turner and Marcus

Phayre-Mudge to resign from Henderson, the Board has

given notice to Henderson to terminate its management

contract with effect from 30 September 2004. As

Henderson had recently de-merged from its previous

parent AMP, the Company was able to give notice with no

compensation payable to Henderson due to a clause in

the management contract relating to a change of control

of manager. The Board has invited Henderson, along with

other fund managers, to make presentations for the

appointment of manager, and will notify shareholders as

soon as possible of the Board’s decision.

The management contract provides for a notice period of 

one year (with the exception to the clause mentioned

above). The base fee is 0.70% p.a. and is calculated half

yearly at the rate of 0.35% of the Group Equity

Shareholders’ Funds as at 30 September and 31 March.

The Board has also agreed a performance fee based on the

Group’s total return compared to the total return of the

benchmark plus a hurdle of 2% over the accounting period.

The fee is calculated at 15% of the difference between the

Group Equity Shareholders’ Funds at 31 March each year

and the theoretical increase in those funds had they been

invested in the Company’s benchmark plus the 

hurdle of 2%. The fee is capped at 1% of the relevant Group

Equity Shareholders’ Funds. If, in any period, the Company’s

total investment return underperforms its benchmark, no

performance fee will become payable in subsequent periods

until such underperformance has been made good in full. To

the extent that there is any unpaid performance fee over and

Report of the Directors continued

above the capped amount then the unutilised performance

may be carried forward. The performance carried forward

may only be used to offset underperformance and not

enhance outperformance. The carry forward only lasts to the

next fee review. The Group Equity Shareholders’ Funds will

be adjusted to compensate for share repurchases and issues

and to measure performance before the deduction of the

base fee but after all other expenses. 

On the basis of the Board's expected long-term split of

returns, in the form of capital gains and income in equal

proportions, the Group charges 50% of its interest payable

to capital. One third of the management fees are deemed

to relate to the administration of the Trust and are charged

to revenue. The remainder are split on the same basis as

interest and 50% charged to capital. The overall result is

that two thirds of management fees are charged to

revenue and one third to capital. All performance fees are

charged to capital.

Corporate Governance

A statement on Corporate Governance is given on pages

26 to 28. 

Share Capital Changes

At 31 March 2003 the Company had 416,494,500 ordinary

shares in issue. During the financial year under review, up to

14 November 2003 the Company made market purchases

for cancellation of 62,078,214 ordinary shares of 25 pence

each representing approximately 14.9% of the issued share

capital as at 31 March 2003; the aggregate consideration

paid by the Company was £48,021,000. As at 31 March

2004 the Company had received new shareholder authority

to make market purchases of a further 53,127,001 ordinary

shares. This authority was approved by shareholders at an

Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) of the Company

convened on 28 January 2004 but, as at the date of

approval of these accounts, has not been used.

The number of ordinary shares in issue on 31 March 2004

was 354,416,286.

The Company is seeking to renew the power to make market

purchases of ordinary shares at the AGM.
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Report of the Directors continued

Declarations of interests in the issued share capital of

the Company, at 14 May 2004, are set out above.

ISAs/PEPs

The Company has conducted its affairs, and will

continue to conduct its affairs, in such a way as to

comply with the Individual Savings Accounts and

Personal Equity Plan Regulations. 

Shareholder Information

Further information on the Company can be found on

pages 49 to 52.

Going Concern

The directors believe that it is appropriate to continue to

adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts

as the assets of the Company consist mainly of securities

which are readily realisable and, accordingly, it has

adequate financial resources to continue in operational

existence for the foreseeable future.

Registered Auditor

A resolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as the

Company’s auditor will be put to the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

J S Ellman-Brown ACIS
For and on behalf of
Henderson Secretarial Services Limited
Secretary
3 June 2004

% of

Shareholder issued shares

Henderson Investment Trust Share Plan, PEPs and ISAs 7.75

BT Pension Scheme 6.98

HSBC Global Custody Nominee (UK) 4.22

Prudential Assurance Co 4.00

Legal & General Investment Management 3.86

Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite 3.01

Substantial Share Interests
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Corporate Governance

Background
The UK Listing Authority requires all listed companies to

disclose how they have applied the principles and complied

with the provisions of the Combined Code (the “Code”).

Throughout the year under review the Code in force was

the Combined Code on Corporate Governance issued by

the London Stock Exchange in 1998; this statement

refers principally to that Code. A revised Combined Code

on Corporate Governance was issued by the Financial

Reporting Council in July 2003 and is effective for

financial years beginning on or after 1 November 2003. In

addition, the AITC Code of Corporate Governance was

issued by the Association of Investment Trust Companies

in July 2003 and updated in January 2004. The Board has

commenced a review of the additional requirements of

both documents. 

Application of the Code’s Principles
The Board attaches great importance to the matters set out

in the Code. It should be noted that, as an investment trust,

most of the Company’s day to day responsibilities are

delegated to third parties and the directors are all non-

executive. Thus, not all the provisions of the Code are

directly applicable to the Company.

The Board and Committees
The Board currently consists of five non-executive

directors, all of whom are deemed to be independent of

Henderson Global Investors Limited (the “Investment

Manager”). Their biographies, on page 21, demonstrate a

breadth of investment, property and professional

experience.

The Board meets at least six times a year and deals with

the important aspects of the Company’s affairs, including

the setting and monitoring of investment strategy and the

review of investment performance. The number of formal

meetings of the Board and the Audit Committee held during

the financial year, and the attendance of individual directors,

are shown below:

Meetings
Board Audit

No. of meetings in the year 6 2

A Ross Goobey 6 2

C M Burton 5 2

J H M Newsum 4 1

P L Salsbury 6 2

R A Stone 6 2

In addition to formal Board and Committee meetings,

directors also attend a number of informal meetings to

represent the interests of the Group.

The Investment Manager takes decisions as to the

purchase and sale of individual investments, and also

ensures that all directors receive, in a timely manner, all

relevant management, regulatory and financial information.

Representatives of the Investment Manager attend each

Board meeting enabling the directors to probe further on

matters of concern or seek clarification on certain issues.

Matters specifically reserved for decision by the full Board

have been defined and a procedure adopted for directors,

in the furtherance of their duties, to take independent

professional advice at the expense of the Company. The

directors have access to the advice and services of the

corporate company secretary, through its appointed

representative, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring

that Board procedures are followed.

When a new director is appointed he or she is offered a

training seminar which is held by the Investment Manager.

Directors are also provided, on a regular basis, with key

information on the Company’s policies, regulatory and

statutory requirements and internal controls. Changes

affecting directors’ responsibilities are advised to the Board

as they arise.

Directors are appointed for specified terms, subject to 

re-election and to the provisions of the Companies Act. In

accordance with the Company’s articles of association, new

directors stand for election at the first Annual General

Meeting following their appointment and every director stands

for re-election at intervals of not more than three years.

The Chairman is a non-executive director. A senior

non-executive director has not been identified as the Board

considers that all the directors have different qualities and

areas of expertise on which they may lead where issues

arise and to whom concerns can be conveyed.

Board Committees
The Board has established an Audit Committee with

defined terms of reference and duties. Membership of this

Committee is set out on page 21.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the review of the

annual report and the interim report, the nature and scope

of the external audit and the findings therefrom, and the
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terms of appointment of the auditors, including their

remuneration and the provision of any non-audit services by

them. It also meets with representatives of the Investment

Manager and receives reports on the quality and

effectiveness of the accounting records and management

information maintained on behalf of the Company.

The Board has decided not to establish a Nominations

Committee, and has disestablished the Management

Engagement Committee. The functions of both Committees

will be carried out by the full Board as part of the agendas

of normal board meetings.

Directors’ Remuneration
The Board as a whole considers directors’ remuneration and

therefore has not appointed a separate Remuneration

Committee. Since the Company is an investment trust

company and all its directors are non-executive, the

Company is not required to comply with the provisions of the

Code in respect of the remuneration of executive directors.

Directors’ fees are detailed in the Remuneration Report set

out on page 22.

Relations with Shareholders
The Investment Manager has an ongoing programme of

meetings with major shareholders and matters raised at

these meetings are reported to the Board.

The Board considers that shareholders should be

encouraged to attend and participate in the Annual General

Meeting. This is chaired by the Chairman of the Board and

attended by the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the

remaining directors. Details of the proxy votes received in

respect of each resolution are made available to

shareholders. Representatives of the Investment Manager

make a presentation to the meeting. The Company has

adopted a nominee share code which is set out on page 51. 

Accountability and Audit
A Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the

Accounts is set out on page 28. The Report of the

Independent Auditors is set out on page 29. The Board has

delegated contractually to external agencies, including the

Investment Manager, the management of the investment

portfolio, the custodial services (which include the

safeguarding of the assets), the day-to-day accounting,

company secretarial and administration requirements and the

registration services. Each of these contracts was entered

into after full and proper consideration by the Board of the

quality and cost of the services offered, including the control

systems in operation in so far as they relate to the affairs of

the Company. The Board receives and considers regular

reports from the Investment Manager and ad hoc reports and

information are supplied to the Board as required. In addition,

the Chairman attends meetings of all the chairmen of the

investment trust companies managed by the Investment

Manager; these meetings provide a forum to discuss industry

matters and the Chairman reports on them to the Board.

The Investment Manager has established an internal control

framework to provide reasonable assurance on the

effectiveness of the internal controls operated on behalf of

its clients. The effectiveness of the internal controls is

assessed by the Investment Manager’s compliance and risk

department on an ongoing basis.

Internal Control
The Board has established an ongoing process for

identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks

faced by the Company. This process is subject to regular

review by the Board and accords with the Internal Control

Guidance for Directors on the Code published in September

1999 (“the Turnbull guidance”). The process was fully in

place up to the date of approval of this annual report and

has operated throughout the year under review. In addition

the Board has conducted its annual review of the

effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control,

covering all the controls, including financial, operational and

compliance controls and risk management. This review took

into account points raised during the year in the Board’s

regular appraisal of specific areas of risk.

The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of

internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. However,

such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate

the risks of failure to achieve the Company’s business

objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, assisted by the Investment Manager, undertook

a full review of the Company’s business risks and these are

analysed and recorded in a risk map. The Board receives

each quarter from the Investment Manager a formal report

which details the steps taken to monitor the areas of risk,

including those that are not directly the responsibility of the

Investment Manager, and which reports the details of any

Corporate Governance continued
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known internal control failures. Steps will continue to be

taken to embed the system of internal control and risk

management into the operations and culture of the

Company and of its key suppliers.

The Company delegates to third parties most of its

operations and does not employ any staff; therefore it does

not itself have an internal audit function. The Board will

continue to monitor its system of internal control in order to

provide assurance that it operates as intended and the

directors will review from time to time whether a function

equivalent to an internal audit is needed.

Exercise of Voting Powers
The Board has approved a corporate governance voting

policy which, in its opinion, accords with current best practice

whilst maintaining a primary focus on financial returns. 

Socially Responsible Investment
Good corporate governance extends to a company’s policies

on the environment, employment, human rights and

community relationships. Corporations are playing an

increasingly important role in global economic activity and

the adoption of good corporate governance enhances a

company’s economic prospects by reducing the risk of

government and regulatory intervention and any ensuing

damage to its business or reputation.

The Company’s policy remains the long term maximisation

of shareholders’ total return.

Environmental Policy
In respect of the direct property portfolio, there is an

environmental assessment prior to purchase to identify

possible contamination or materials considered

environmentally harmful. Remedial action is taken where

appropriate. Tenants are encouraged to pursue their own

environmental procedures.

Statement of Compliance
The directors consider that the Company has complied

throughout the year ended 31 March 2004, and up to the

date of this report, with all the relevant provisions set out in

Section 1 of the Code.

Corporate Governance continued

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 
in respect of the Accounts

preparation of the accounts for the year ended 31 March

2004. The directors also confirm that applicable accounting

standards have been followed and that the accounts have

been prepared on a going concern basis.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting

records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and

the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the

prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are required by UK company law to prepare

accounts for each financial year that give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group

as at the end of the financial year and of the net revenue

of the Group for that period.

The directors confirm that suitable accounting policies have

been used and applied consistently and that reasonable and

prudent judgements and estimates have been made in the



Report of the Independent Auditors
to the members of TR Property Investment Trust plc

We have audited the Group’s accounts for the year ended

31 March 2004 which comprise the Group Statement of Total

Return, Group and Company Balance Sheets, Group Cash Flow

Statement and the related notes 1 to 27. These accounts have

been prepared on the basis of the accounting policies set out

therein. We have also audited the information in the Directors’

Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a

body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act

1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might

state to the Company’s members those matters we are required

to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or

assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and

the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this

report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,

including the accounts which are required to be prepared in

accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and

accounting standards as set out in the Statement of Directors’

Responsibilities in relation to the accounts.

Our responsibility is to audit the accounts and the part of the

Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance

with relevant legal and regulatory requirements, United

Kingdom Auditing Standards and the Listing Rules of the

Financial Services Authority.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the accounts give a

true and fair view and whether the accounts and the part of the

Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly

prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also

report to you if, in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not

consistent with the accounts, if the Company has not kept proper

accounting records, if we have not received all the information

and explanations we require for our audit, or if information

specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding directors’

remuneration and transactions with the Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement

reflects the Company’s compliance with the seven provisions of

the Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing

Rules, and we report if it does not. We are not required to

consider whether the Board’s statements on internal control

cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance procedures

or its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and

consider whether it is consistent with the audited accounts.

This other information comprises Highlights of the Year, Profile,

Financial Highlights and Performance Information, Chairman’s

Statement, Manager’s Report, Twenty Largest Equity

Investments, Principal Investment Properties, the unaudited part

of the Directors’ Remuneration Report, Report of the Directors

and Corporate Governance Statement. We consider the

implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent

misstatements or material inconsistencies with the accounts.

Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of Audit Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom

Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An

audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant

to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts and the part of

the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes

an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements

made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s

circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the

information and explanations which we considered necessary in

order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable

assurance that the accounts and the part of the Directors’

Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or

error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall

adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts and

the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinion
In our opinion:

� the accounts give a true and fair view of the state 

of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March

2004 and of the total return of the Group 

for the year then ended; and

� the accounts and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration

Report to be audited have been properly prepared in

accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

Ernst & Young LLP

Registered Auditor

London

3 June 2004
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Group Statement of Total Return
(incorporating the Revenue Account) for the year ended 31 March 2004

Year ended 31 March 2004 Year ended 31 March 2003
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

2 Total capital gains/(losses) 
from investments – 147,478 147,478 – (25,633) (25,633)

Repurchase of warrants – – – – (8,885) (8,885)
3 Investment income 12,608 – 12,608 11,529 – 11,529
4 Net rental income 3,353 – 3,353 4,938 – 4,938

15,961 147,478 163,439 16,467 (34,518) (18,051)
5 Interest receivable and similar income 286 – 286 209 – 209

Gross revenue and capital 
gains/(losses) 16,247 147,478 163,725 16,676 (34,518) (17,842)

6 Management and performance fees (1,764) (2,149) (3,913) (1,702) (851) (2,553)
7 Other administrative expenses (643) – (643) (570) – (570)

Net return on ordinary activities
before interest payable and taxation 13,840 145,329 159,169 14,404 (35,369) (20,965)

8 Interest payable and similar charges (2,512) (2,512) (5,024) (2,433) (2,433) (4,866)

Net return on ordinary 
activities before taxation 11,328 142,817 154,145 11,971 (37,802) (25,831)

9 Taxation on net return on ordinary
activities (1,564) 912 (652) (2,237) 696 (1,541)

Net return on ordinary activities
after taxation 9,764 143,729 153,493 9,734 (37,106) (27,372)

Ordinary dividends
Interim of 1.10p (2003: 0.90p) (3,899) – (3,899) (3,823) – (3,823)
Final of 1.40p (2003: 1.15p) (4,961) – (4,961) (4,774) – (4,774)

(8,860) – (8,860) (8,597) – (8,597)

Transfer to/(from) reserves 904 143,729 144,633 1,137 (37,106) (35,969)

10 Return per ordinary share 2.51p 36.96p 39.47p 2.30p (8.78)p (6.48)p

The revenue columns of this statement represent the revenue account of the Group.

All revenue and capital items in the above statement derive from continuing operations.

No operations were acquired or discontinued during the year.

The notes on pages 33 to 46 form part of these accounts.

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––



TR Property Investment Trust 31

Group and Company Balance Sheets
as at 31 March 2004

Group Group Company Company
2004 2003 2004 2003

Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

11, 12 Fixed asset investments 486,266 358,178 499,829 357,646

Current assets
14 Debtors 5,982 4,267 5,626 3,452

Cash at bank 2,360 1,790 2,215 1,641

8,342 6,057 7,841 5,093

15 Creditors – amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdrafts 43,323 8,697 43,101 8,697
Other creditors 10,345 11,217 63,580 49,665

53,668 19,914 106,681 58,362

Net current liabilities (45,326) (13,857) (98,840) (53,269)

Total assets less current liabilities 440,940 344,321 400,989 304,377

15 Creditors – amounts falling due
after more than one year 40,201 40,194 250 250

Total net assets 400,739 304,127 400,739 304,127

Capital and reserves
16 Called up share capital 88,604 104,124 88,604 104,124
17 Share premium 37,063 37,063 37,063 37,063
18 Other reserves 257,225 145,997 265,222 153,355
18 Revenue reserve 17,847 16,943 9,850 9,585

20 Equity shareholders’ funds 400,739 304,127 400,739 304,127

20 Net asset value per share 113.07p 73.02p 113.07p 73.02p

These accounts were approved by the directors on 3 June 2004

A Ross Goobey – Director

The notes on pages 33 to 46 form part of these accounts.

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
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Group Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2004

2004 2004 2003 2003
Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

21 Net cash inflow from operating activities 11,837 12,483

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest paid (5,018) (4,806)

Net cash outflow from servicing of finance (5,018) (4,806)

Taxation recovered 541 442

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of investments (62,833) (82,130)
Sale of investments 77,291 128,490
Loans repaid by unquoteds 967 –

Net cash inflow from financial investment 15,425 46,360

Equity dividends paid (8,672) (7,989)

Net cash inflow before financing 14,113 46,490

Financing
Issue of shares – 8,277
Purchase of own shares (48,021) (10,662)
Purchase of own warrants – (8,885)

Net cash outflow from financing (48,021) (11,270)

22 (Decrease)/increase in cash (33,908) 35,220

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
2004 2003
£’000 £’000

Increase in cash 718 985
Cash (inflow)/outflow from (increase)/decrease in loans (34,626) 34,235

Change in net debt resulting from cash flows (33,908) 35,220
Exchange differences (148) (96)
Other (7) (6)

Movement in net debt (34,063) 35,118
Net debt at 1 April (47,101) (82,219)

Net debt at 31 March (81,164) (47,101)

The notes on pages 33 to 46 form part of these accounts.

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policies

a Basis of preparation

The accounts are prepared on the historical cost basis of accounting, modified to include the revaluation of investment

properties and fixed asset investments. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting

standards and with the Statement of Recommended Practice Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies
(“the SORP”) (revised January 2003). All of the Group’s operations are of a continuing nature.

b Basis of consolidation

The Group accounts consolidate the accounts of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings to 31 March 2004.

Undertakings, other than subsidiary undertakings, in which the Group has an investment representing 20% or more of

the voting rights and over which it exerts significant influence, are treated as associated undertakings. The Group

accounts include the appropriate share of the results and reserves of these undertakings based on the latest available

accounts. Other undertakings, in which the Group has an investment representing 20% or more of the voting rights but

where the directors consider that the Group does not exert significant influence, are not treated as associated

undertakings and are accounted for as investments.

c Properties

Properties held by subsidiary undertakings for dealing are treated as current assets and are included in the balance

sheet at the lower of cost and market value.

Properties held for long term investment are treated as follows:

(i) they are revalued six-monthly and the aggregate surplus or deficit is transferred to/from non-distributable reserves; and

(ii) no depreciation or amortisation is provided in respect of freehold investment properties and leasehold investment

properties where the unexpired lease term is 20 years or more. The directors consider that this accounting policy is

necessary for the accounts to give a true and fair view. Depreciation is only one of the factors reflected in the

valuation, and the amount which might otherwise have been shown cannot be separately identified or quantified.

The purchase and sale of properties is recognised to be effected on the date unconditional contracts are exchanged.

d Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments are valued at middle market prices. Unlisted investments are included at directors’ valuation,

which is based on current market prices, trading conditions and the general economic climate. Where no active market

exists for shares listed on inactive exchanges the directors’ valuation policy is used.

The Company’s investments in subsidiary undertakings are revalued annually to the Company’s share of the net assets

of those undertakings. 

e Capital gains and losses

Realised and unrealised capital gains and losses on investments, together with exchange differences arising on the

translation of foreign currency assets and liabilities, are dealt with in the non-distributable reserves.
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f Income

Dividend income from equity shares is recognised on an ex-dividend basis and income from fixed interest debt

securities and preference shares is recognised on a time apportionment basis and, if material, so as to reflect the

effective yield on each such security. Interest receivable is accounted for on an accruals basis.

g Expenses and interest payable

On the basis of the Board’s expected long-term split of returns in the form of capital gains and income in equal

proportions, the Group charges 50% of its interest payable to capital. One third of the management fees are deemed to

relate to the administration of the Trust and are charged to revenue. The remainder are split on the same basis as

interest and 50% charged to capital. The overall result is that two thirds of management fees are charged to revenue

and one third to capital. All performance fees are charged to capital. The finance cost in respect of capital instruments

other than equity shares is calculated so as to give a constant rate of return on the outstanding balance.

h Foreign currency

Transactions denominated in overseas currencies during the year are translated into sterling at the appropriate daily

exchange rate. Assets and liabilities denominated in overseas currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into

sterling at the exchange rates ruling at that time.

i Taxation

These accounts follow the requirements of Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS”) 16, “Current Taxation”, to show franked

investment income net of the related tax credits. The tax effect of different items of expenditure is allocated between

capital and revenue using the Group’s effective rate of tax for the year. The charge for taxation is based on the profit

for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing differences between the treatment of certain

items for taxation and accounting purposes. Following the introduction of FRS 19, deferred taxation is provided using

the liability method on all timing differences, calculated at the rate at which it is anticipated the timing differences will

reverse. Deferred tax assets are recognised only when, on the basis of available evidence, it is more likely than not that

there will be taxable profits in the future against which the deferred tax asset can be offset.

2 Total capital gains/(losses) from investments
2004 2003
£’000 £’000

Realised gains based on historical cost 20,119 24,210

Amounts recognised as unrealised in previous years (3,799) (22,938)

Realised gains based on carrying value at previous balance sheet date 16,320 1,272

Net movement in unrealised appreciation 131,306 (26,809)

Net loss on foreign exchange (148) (96)

147,478 (25,633)
––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

Notes to the Accounts continued
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3 Investment income
2004 2003

£’000 £’000

Dividends from UK listed investments 5,082 5,539

Dividends from overseas listed investments 7,353 5,827

Interest from listed investments 173 163

7,526 5,990

12,608 11,529

4 Net rental income
2004 2003
£’000 £’000

Gross rent 4,927 6,082

Direct property expenses including ground rent (1,574) (1,144)

3,353 4,938

5 Interest receivable and similar income
2004 2003
£’000 £’000

Interest receivable 285 186

Other income 1 23

286 209

6 Management and performance fees
2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Management fee 1,556 778 2,334 1,506 753 2,259

Managers’ performance fee – 1,083 1,083 – – –

Irrecoverable VAT thereon 208 288 496 196 98 294

1,764 2,149 3,913 1,702 851 2,553

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page 24.

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

Notes to the Accounts continued
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Notes to the Accounts continued

7 Other administrative expenses
(including irrecoverable VAT) 2004 2003

£’000 £’000

Directors’ fees (Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 22) 88 89

Auditors’ remuneration:

for audit services (note 7a) 75 63

Other expenses payable to the

management company (note 7b) 29 22

Marketing (note 7c) 70 48

Other expenses 381 348

643 570

(a)  Includes £44,000 (2003: £32,000) relating to the parent undertaking.

(b)  Other expenses payable to the management company relate to share plan administration services.

(c)  Includes £nil relating to AITC marketing (2003: £20,000).

8 Interest payable and similar charges
2004 2003
£’000 £’000

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 1,243 1,080

Debentures repayable between 1 and 5 years 2,038 –

Debentures repayable after more than 5 years 1,743 3,786

5,024 4,866

Amount allocated to capital (2,512) (2,433)

Total allocated to revenue 2,512 2,433

9 Taxation on net return on ordinary activities
a Analysis of charge in the year

2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

UK corporation tax at 30% 1,770 (912) 858 1,577 (696) 881

Overseas taxation 25 – 25 239 – 239

1,795 (912) 883 1,816 (696) 1,120

Deferred taxation (46) – (46) 456 – 456

Overprovision in respect of 

prior years (185) – (185) (35) – (35)

1,564 (912) 652 2,237 (696) 1,541
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––
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9 Taxation on net return on ordinary activities continued

b Factors affecting current tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the period is lower than the standard rate of corporate tax in the UK for a large company (30%).

The difference is explained below:
2004 2003
£’000 £’000

Net profit on ordinary activities before taxation 11,328 11,971

Corporation tax at 30% 3,398 3,591

Effects of:

Non-taxable UK dividends (1,585) (1,662)

Expenses charged to capital (191) (288)

Overseas withholding taxes 25 239

Overprovision in respect of prior years (185) (35)

Excess expenses utilised (544) (729)

Disallowable expenses 113 26

Taxable Avoir Fiscal 67 96

Overseas dividends taken to capital – 503

Other short term timing differences (226) 40

Capital intra group expenditure reversed 738 –

Current tax charge for the year 1,610 1,781

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of £1,615,000 (2003: £1,427,000) arising as a result of excess

management expenses and excess non trade debits. These expenses will only be utilised if the Group has profits

chargeable to corporation tax in future accounting periods. It is considered too uncertain that the Group will generate

such profits and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Due to the Company’s status as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to

obtain approval in the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains and losses

arising on the revaluation or disposal of investments.

c Provision for deferred taxation
The amounts of deferred taxation provided at 30% comprise:

2004 2003
£’000 £’000

Accelerated capital allowances 159 155

Unutilised losses carried forward (50) –

109 155

The movement in provision in the year is as follows:
£’000

Provision at the start of the year 155

Deferred tax charge in Statement of Total Return:

Accelerated capital allowances 4
Unutilised losses carried forward (50)

Provision at the end of the year 109
–––––––

––––––––

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––
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10 Return per ordinary share
Basic revenue return per ordinary share is based on the net revenue return on ordinary activities after taxation of

£9,764,000 (2003: £9,734,000) and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, being

388,831,553 (2003: 422,633,986). Basic capital return per ordinary share is based on net capital gains of

£143,729,000 (2003: £37,106,000 losses) and on the same weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year. 

11 Fixed asset investments
Group Group Company Company

2004 2003 2004 2003
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Listed at market value:

United Kingdom 253,285 162,037 253,262 162,015

Overseas 162,317 120,962 162,317 120,962

Unlisted at Directors’ valuation 1,904 1,599 1,904 1,599

Subsidiary undertakings (note 26) – – 46,696 41,145

Investment properties 68,760 73,580 35,650 31,925

486,266 358,178 499,829 357,646

The Company’s investment in subsidiary undertakings is stated at the Company’s share of the net assets of those

undertakings.

Investment properties were independently valued on the basis of open market value in accordance with the definition

set out in the appraisal and valuation manual published by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (“the Red

Book”). The valuations were carried out as at 31 March 2004 by Drivers Jonas save for residential properties held in

Trust Union Properties Limited which were valued by DTZ Pieda Consulting at the same date.

The historical cost to the Group of the investment properties shown above was £52,453,000 (2003: £58,317,000).

12 Changes in fixed asset investments
Group Company
£’000 £’000

Valuation at 1 April 2003 358,178 357,646
Unrealised appreciation (47,059) (44,739)

Cost at 1 April 2003 311,119 312,907
Additions at cost 60,775 64,984
Disposals at cost (60,194) (53,883)

Cost at 31 March 2004 311,700 324,008
Unrealised appreciation 174,566 175,821

Valuation at 31 March 2004 486,266 499,829
––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––
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––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
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Notes to the Accounts continued

13 Derivatives and other financial instruments
The Group’s financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise securities and other investments, cash balances and

debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations, for example, in respect of sales and purchases awaiting

settlement and debtors for accrued income. 

The Group has little exposure to credit and cash flow risk. Unquoted investments in the portfolio are subject to liquidity

risk. This risk is taken into account by the directors when arriving at their valuation of these items.

The principal risks the Group faces in its portfolio management activities are:

• market price risk (i.e. movements in the value of investment holdings caused by factors other than interest rate or

currency movement);

• foreign currency risk;

• interest rate risk.

The Investment Manager’s policies for managing these risks are summarised below and have been applied throughout

the year.

(i) Market Price Risk

By the very nature of its activities, the Group’s investments are exposed to market price fluctuations. Further information

on the investment portfolio and investment policy is set out in the Manager’s Report on pages 8 to 15.

(ii) Foreign Currency Risk

A proportion of the Group’s portfolio is invested in overseas securities and their sterling value can be significantly

affected by movements in foreign exchange rates. The Group may hedge foreign currency movements outside the

Eurozone by funding investments in overseas securities with unsecured loans denominated in the same currency. 

(iii) Interest Rate Risk

The majority of the Group’s borrowings are at a fixed rate. A proportion of term loans may be hedged by the use of

interest rate swaps and cap contracts. Short term borrowings are not hedged.

(iv) Use of Derivatives

It is not the Group’s policy to enter into derivative contracts other than for the purposes of hedging against price

movements in the value of particular constituents of the portfolio or interest rate exposures.



40 TR Property Investment Trust

Notes to the Accounts continued

13 Derivatives and other financial instruments continued

Foreign currency and interest rate exposures at 31 March 2004 (using exchange rates of 1.4956 Euros, 13.8598

Swedish Krona and 2.3283 Swiss Francs to £1) are:
Financial Assets Financial Liabilities

Fixed Floating Non interest Floating Non interest
interest rate bearing Total Fixed rate rate bearing Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Sterling 3,980 6,027 252,019 262,026 40,201 43,585 9,404 93,190

Euro – 445 142,545 142,990 – 679 – 679

Swedish Krona – 7 18,479 18,486 – – – –

Swiss Francs – 13 2,326 2,339 – – – –

Other – 7 – 7 – – – –

3,980 6,499 415,369 425,848 40,201 44,264 9,404 93,869

Foreign currency and interest rate exposures at 31 March 2003 (using exchange rates of 1.4486 Euros, 13.4024

Swedish Krona and 2.1362 Swiss Francs to £1) were:
Financial Assets Financial Liabilities

Fixed Floating Non interest Floating Non interest
interest rate bearing Total Fixed rate rate bearing Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Sterling 3,243 2,804 162,299 168,346 40,194 9,167 8,021 57,382

Euro – 1,074 107,304 108,378 – 2,005 – 2,005

Swedish Krona – 4 11,107 11,111 – 721 – 721

Swiss Francs – 34 2,779 2,813 – – – –

Other – 7 – 7 – – – –

3,243 3,923 283,489 290,655 40,194 11,893 8,021 60,108

The fixed rate assets have a weighted average life of 12.9 years (2003: 12.2 years) and a weighted average interest rate

of 7.5% (2003: 7.5%) per annum. The non interest bearing assets represent the equity element of the investment portfolio.

Floating rate financial assets and liabilities consist primarily of bank balances, loans and overdrafts; their respective

interest rates are linked to LIBOR.

Currency Exposure

The currency denomination of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities is shown above. 

Primary Financial Instruments

Securities and other investments are included in the balance sheet at market values.

–––––––– ––––––––

––––––– ––––––– –––––––
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14 Debtors
Group Group Company Company

2004 2003 2004 2003
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Securities and properties sold for future settlement 4,188 1,166 4,139 1,166

Amounts due from substantial interests – 967 – 967

Tax recoverable 216 218 216 218

Deferred taxation 50 – 50 –

Prepayments and accrued income 1,203 1,186 1,139 998

Other debtors 325 730 82 103

5,982 4,267 5,626 3,452

15 Creditors
Group Group Company Company

2004 2003 2004 2003
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Bank loans and overdrafts 43,323 8,697 43,101 8,697

Securities and properties purchased for future settlement 941 3,196 941 3,196

Amounts due to Group undertakings – – 54,776 40,532

Deferred taxation 159 155 – –

Ordinary dividends declared and proposed 4,961 4,774 4,961 4,774

Managers’ performance fees payable 1,267 – 1,267 –

Accruals and deferred income 1,578 2,083 463 645

Other creditors 1,439 1,009 1,172 518

10,345 11,217 63,580 49,665

53,668 19,914 106,681 58,362

Amounts falling due after more than one year:

Debenture loans (a), (b) and (c) below 40,201 40,194 250 250

The total amount of secured creditors is £40,000,000.

Debenture Loans

(a) £15,000,000 (2003: £15,000,000) participation by TR Property Finance Limited, a subsidiary undertaking, in

11.5% 2016 several debenture stock issued by TRUSTCO Finance plc, which is guaranteed by the Company by 

a floating charge over its assets. The market value of this debenture at 31 March 2004 was £21,422,000.

(b) £25,000,000 (2003: £25,000,000) 8.125% 2008 debenture stock in the name of Trust Union Finance (1991)

PLC, a subsidiary undertaking, which is guaranteed by the Company by a floating charge over its assets.

The market value of this debenture at 31 March 2004 was £27,203,000.

(c) £250,000 5% unsecured loan notes issued on 31 March 1999 by TR Property Investment Trust plc for the finance

of 198/202 Piccadilly. The estimated fair value of these loan notes at 31 March 2004 was £250,000.

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
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Notes to the Accounts continued

16 Called up share capital
Authorised Issued, allotted and fully paid

Number £’000 Number £’000

Ordinary shares of 25p

At 31 March 2003 779,170,350 194,793 416,494,500 104,124
Shares repurchased – – (62,078,214) (15,520)

At 31 March 2004 779,170,350 194,793 354,416,286 88,604

During the year, the Company made market purchases for cancellation of 62,078,214 ordinary shares of 25p each

representing 14.9% of the number of shares in issue at 31 March 2003. The aggregate consideration paid by the

Company for the shares was £48,021,000. Shares are repurchased in order to enhance shareholder value.

17 Share premium 
Share premium

Group Company
£’000 £’000

At 1 April 2003 and 31 March 2004 37,063 37,063

18 Reserves
Other reserves

Capital Unrealised Realised Revenue 
a Group redemption appreciation reserves Total reserve

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 1 April 2003 18,181 47,059 80,757 145,997 16,943
Transfer on disposal of assets – (3,799) 3,799 – –
Net gain from fixed asset investments – 131,306 16,320 147,626 –
Net loss on foreign exchange – – (148) (148) –
Expenses and interest payable charged to capital – – (4,661) (4,661) –
Tax relief on expenses and interest payable

charged to capital – – 912 912 –
Purchase of own shares 15,520 – (48,021) (32,501) –
Retained revenue for the year – – – – 904

At 31 March 2004 33,701 174,566 48,958 257,225 17,847

Unrealised appreciation at 31 March 2004 includes £1,860,000 (2003: £1,556,000) relating to unlisted fixed asset

investments and £15,307,000 (2003: £15,263,000) relating to investment properties.

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
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18 Reserves continued
Other reserves

Capital Unrealised Realised Revenue 
b Company redemption appreciation reserves Total reserve

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

At 1 April 2003 18,181 44,739 90,435 153,355 9,585
Transfer on disposal of assets – (3,061) 3,061 – –
Net gain from fixed asset investments – 134,147 15,081 149,228 –
Net loss on foreign exchange – – (148) (148) –
Expenses and interest payable charged to capital – – (5,133) (5,133) –
Tax relief on expenses and interest payable

charged to capital – – 421 421 –
Purchase of own shares 15,520 – (48,021) (32,501) –
Retained revenue for the year – – – – 265

At 31 March 2004 33,701 175,825 55,696 265,222 9,850

Unrealised appreciation at 31 March 2004 includes £18,723,000 (2003: £12,617,000) relating to unlisted fixed asset

investments and £4,957,000 (2003: £5,943,000) relating to investment properties.

19 Company revenue account
As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company has not presented its own revenue account.

The net revenue after taxation of the Company dealt with in the accounts of the Group was £9,125,000 (2003:

£9,786,000).

20 Net asset value per ordinary share
Basic net asset value per ordinary share is based on net assets attributable to ordinary shares of £400,739,000

(2003: £304,127,000) and on 354,416,286 (2003: 416,494,500) ordinary shares in issue at the year end. 

The movements during the year of the Group assets attributable to the ordinary shares were as follows:

£’000

Total net assets at 1 April 2003 304,127
Total net return on ordinary activities after taxation and dividends 144,633
Purchase of own shares (48,021)

Total net assets at 31 March 2004 400,739
–––––––

––––––––

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
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Notes to the Accounts continued

21 Reconciliation of Group operating revenue to net cash inflow from operating activities
2004 2003
£’000 £’000

Net revenue before interest payable and taxation 13,840 14,404

(Increase)/decrease in operating debtors (24) 1,244

Increase in operating creditors 1,180 3

Overseas withholding tax suffered (815) (1,007)

Performance fees paid – (1,310)

Management and performance fees charged to capital (2,149) (851)

Scrip dividends included in investment income (195) –

Net cash inflow from operating activities 11,837 12,483

22 Analysis of changes in net debt
At 1 April Other non- At 31 March

2003 Cash flow cash changes 2004
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Cash at bank 1,790 718 (148) 2,360
Overdrafts (8,697) (34,626) – (43,323) 

(6,907) (33,908) (148) (40,963)

Debts falling due after more than one year (40,194) – (7) (40,201)

Net debt (47,101) (33,908) (155) (81,164)

23 Commitments and contingent liabilities
At 31 March 2004 the Group had capital commitments of £513,000 (2003: £nil) but no contingent liabilities (2003:

£nil). At 31 March 2004 the Company had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments (2003: £nil).

The Company has guaranteed a £15,000,000 (2003: £15,000,000) participation in 11.5% 2016 secured debenture

stock and a £25,000,000 (2003: £25,000,000) 8.125% 2008 debenture stock (see note 15).

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––
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24 Group reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds
2004 2003
£’000 £’000

Net revenue on ordinary activities after taxation 9,764 9,734

Dividends (8,860) (8,597)

904 1,137

Proceeds on exercise of warrants – 8,277

Increase/(decrease) in non-distributable reserves 143,729 (28,221)

Purchase of own shares and warrants (48,021) (19,547)

Net increase/(decrease) in shareholders’ funds 96,612 (38,354)

Shareholders’ funds at 1 April 304,127 342,481

Shareholders’ funds at 31 March 400,739 304,127

25 Transactions with the manager
Under the terms of an agreement dated 15 March 1995 the Company has appointed wholly owned subsidiaries 

of Henderson Global Investors (Holdings) plc (“Henderson”) to provide investment management, accounting, secretarial,

administrative and UK custody services. Henderson has contracted BNP Paribas Fund Services UK Limited (formerly

Cogent Investment Operations Limited) to provide accounting and administrative services. Details of the fee

arrangements for these services are given in the Report of the Directors on page 24. The total of the fees paid or payable

to Henderson under these agreements in respect of the year ended 31 March 2004 was £3,913,000 (including

irrecoverable VAT) (2003: £2,553,000) of which £1,246,000 was outstanding at 31 March 2004 (2003: £519,000). 

In addition to the above services Henderson has provided the Company with share plan administration and marketing

services. The total fees paid or payable for these services for the year ended 31 March 2004 amounted to £29,000

(including irrecoverable VAT) (2003: £22,000). £10,000 was outstanding at 31 March 2004 (2003: £16,000).

––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––

––––––––––––––––
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26 Subsidiary undertakings
The Group has the following principal subsidiary undertakings, all of which are registered and operating in England

and Wales:

Name of Company Principal Activities
Trust Union Properties Ltd Property investment and dealing

TR Property Finance Ltd Investment holding and finance

* Trust Union Finance (1991) PLC Investment holding and finance

Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Ltd Property investment

* The Colonnades Ltd Property investment

* New England Properties Ltd Property investment, development,

dealing and management services

* Indirectly held

All the subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned and all the holdings are ordinary shares. The Group also has other

subsidiary undertakings which are either not trading or not significant.

27 Substantial interests
The Group has the following substantial interests, all of which are registered and operating in England and Wales:

Class of Percentage
Shares Holding Principal

Name of Company held of Class Activities

Controlrun Limited A Ordinary £1 NIL Property investment

B Ordinary £1 100.0% in petrol stations

Cumulative Redeemable

Preference 10p 100.0%

Big Yellow Group Ordinary 10p 12.2% Ownership and operation

of self storage facilities

Rugby Estates Ordinary 20p 11.8% Property investment

Trust of Property Shares Ordinary 5p 17.1% Investment trust

The Group also held interests in 3% or more of any class of capital in 3 investee companies. None of these

investments is considered significant in the context of these accounts.

Notes to the Accounts continued
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(e) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company in 2005 or, if earlier, 18 months from the
passing of this resolution, save that the Company
may before such expiry enter into a contract to
purchase Shares under which such purchases will or
may be completed or executed wholly or partly after
the expiration of this authority and may make a
purchase of Shares in pursuance of any such contract.

By order of the Board

J S Ellman-Brown ACIS
Henderson Secretarial Services Limited
Secretary
3 June 2004

Notes
1 Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities

Regulations 2001, only those shareholders registered in 
the register of members of the Company at 7.00pm on
24 July 2004 shall be entitled to attend and/or vote at 
the Annual General Meeting in respect of the number of
shares registered in their name at that time. Changes to
entries on the relevant register of securities after that time 
on 24 July 2004 shall be disregarded in determining the
rights of any person to attend or vote at the Meeting. In the
case of joint holders of a share, the vote of the senior who
tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be
accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint
holders and, for this purpose, seniority shall be determined
by the order in which the names stand in the register in
respect of the joint holding.

2 A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting 
is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, 
on a poll, to vote on his/her behalf. A proxy need not be 
a member of the Company. The number of votes cast 
by proxy for each resolution will be communicated to
shareholders at or following the AGM and will be available
on request.

3 A form of proxy is enclosed and to be valid must be lodged
with the Registrar of the Company not less than 48 hours
before the time fixed for the meeting. Completion and return
of a form of proxy will not preclude a shareholder from
attending and voting in person.

4 This notice is sent for information only to holders of
debentures issued by Trust Union Finance (1991) PLC.

5 The Register of Directors’ Interests kept by the Company in
accordance with Section 325 of the Companies Act 1985
will be open for inspection at the AGM.

6 By attending the meeting, members and their proxies and
representatives are understood by the Company to have
confirmed their agreement to receive any communications
(including communications relating to the Company’s
securities) made at the meeting.

7 The Registered Office of the Company is 4 Broadgate,
London EC2M 2DA.

Notice is hereby given that the One Hundredth Annual
General Meeting of TR Property Investment Trust plc will
be held at 4 Broadgate, London, EC2M 2DA on Monday 
26 July 2004 at 12 noon for the following purposes:

Ordinary Business
1 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the

year ended 31 March 2004.

2 To receive the Report of the Directors and the audited
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2004.

3 To declare a final dividend of 1.40p per ordinary share.

4 To re-elect Mr R A Stone as a director.

5 To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors of the 
Company. 

6 To authorise the directors to determine the
remuneration of the auditors.

Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as a special resolution:

7 THAT the Company be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised in accordance with Section
166 of the Companies Act 1985 (“the Act”) to make
market purchases (within the meaning of Section 163
of the Act) of ordinary shares of 25 pence each in the
capital of the Company (“Shares”) on such terms and
in such manner as the Directors may from time to time
determine provided that:

(a) the maximum number of Shares hereby authorised
to be purchased shall be 53,127,001 (being 14.99%
of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue at 3 June
2004, the date of this Notice of Annual General
Meeting);

(b) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) at
which a Share may be purchased shall not exceed
105 per cent. of the average of the middle market
quotations for the Shares as taken from the
London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the
five business days immediately preceding the date
of purchase;

(c) the minimum price (exclusive of expenses) which
may be paid for a Share shall be 25p, being the
nominal value per Share; 

(d) the authority hereby conferred is in substitution for
and not in addition to the authority granted to the
Company to make market purchases of Shares at
the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company
held on 28 January 2004; and

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2 and 3: Remuneration Report, Accounts
& Dividend
These are the resolutions which deal with the approval of
the directors’ remuneration report, the presentation of the
audited accounts and the declaration of the final dividend.
The vote to approve the remuneration report is advisory only
and will not require the Company to alter any arrangements
detailed in the report should the resolution not be passed.

Resolution 4: Re-election of Director
This resolution deals with the re-election of Mr R A Stone
as a Director. Under the Articles of Association, he is
required to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting.
Mr Stone has confirmed that he will stand for re-election.

Resolutions 5 and 6: Auditors
These deal with the re-appointment of the Auditors, Ernst &
Young LLP, and the authorising of the directors to
determine their remuneration.

Resolution 7: Authority to make Market Purchases of the
Company’s own Shares
At an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 28 January
2004, a special resolution was proposed and passed, giving
the directors authority, until the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting in 2004, to make market purchases of the
Company’s own issued ordinary shares up to a maximum of
53,127,001 (representing approximately 14.99% of the
issued share capital as at 16 December 2003, the date of
the Notice of the EGM) for cancellation. This authority will
expire at this year’s Annual General Meeting.

Your Board is proposing that they should be given renewed
authority to purchase ordinary shares in the market. Your
Board believes that to make such purchases in the market
at appropriate times and prices is a suitable method of
enhancing shareholder value. The Company would, within
guidelines set from time to time by the Board, make either a
single purchase or a series of purchases, when market
conditions are suitable, with the aim of maximising the
benefits to shareholders.

Where purchases are made at prices below the prevailing
net asset value per share, this will enhance the net asset
value for the remaining shareholders. It is therefore
intended that purchases would only be made at prices
below net asset value. Your Board considers that it will be
most advantageous to shareholders for the Company to be
able to make such purchases as and when it considers the
timing to be favourable and therefore does not propose to
set a timetable for making any such purchases.

The Companies (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury
Shares) Regulations 2003 (the “Regulations”) came into
force on 1 December 2003. The Regulations enable
companies in the United Kingdom to hold any of their own
shares they have purchased as treasury stock with a view
to possible resale at a future date, rather than cancelling
them. If the Company does re-purchase any of its shares,
the directors do not currently intend to hold any of the
shares re-purchased in treasury. The shares so re-
purchased will continue to be cancelled.

The rules of the UK Listing Authority limit the price which
may be paid by the Company to 105% of the average
middle-market quotation for an ordinary share on the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of the
relevant purchase. The minimum price to be paid will
be 25p per ordinary share (being the nominal value).
Also these rules limit a listed company to purchases of
shares representing up to 15% of its issued ordinary
share capital through the market pursuant to a general
authority such as this. For this reason, the Company is
limiting its authority to make such purchases to
53,127,001 ordinary shares (being approximately
14.99% of the ordinary shares in issue at the date of the
Notice of AGM). The authority will last until the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2005 or,
if earlier, 18 months from the passing of the resolution.

A special resolution is one that requires a majority of at
least 75% of those present and voting to be passed.
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General Shareholder Information

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Gross revenue

(£’000) 10,275 15,591 14,643 11,986 12,868 15,182 12,693 13,307 13,751 16,676 16,247

Net revenue 

(per share)†

Earnings 1.43 1.33 1.54 1.42 1.34 1.97 1.41 1.58 1.86 2.30 2.51

Dividends 0.90 0.94 0.98 1.03 1.12 1.27 1.32 1.40 1.65 2.05 2.50

Total assets less

current liabilities (£m) 146.8 191.0 191.4 248.3 308.9 292.5 305.8 382.7 382.7 344.3 440.9

NAV per share (p) 42.0 34.0 35.3 44.0 54.4* 52.0* 56.5* 73.2* 78.1* 73.0 113.1

Indices of growth

(per share)

Share Price 100 85 80 101 136 122 127 164 182 166 268

Net Asset Value 100 81 84 105 130 124 135 174 186 174 269

Dividend Net 100 104 109 114 124 141 147 156 183 228 278

Benchmark** 100 88 93 119 153 121 114 142 145 132 186

Historical Performance for years ended 31 March

†adjusted to present capital *fully diluted for warrant conversion

**Composite Index (comprising FTSE Real Estate and S&P/Citigroup European Property Indices)

Source: Datastream

Ordinary shares

Confer certain rights to the holder as laid down in the

Articles of Association. These include entitlements to any

income distributions paid by the Company, to all

undistributed net income if the Company is wound-up 

and certain voting rights. They rank for payment of capital

after repayment of borrowings and the entitlements of all

other share classes.

Premium

The amount by which the market price per share of an

Investment Trust Company exceeds the net asset value

per share. The premium is normally expressed as a

percentage of the net asset value per share.

Glossary of Terms
Discount

The amount by which the market price per share of an

Investment Trust Company is lower than the net asset

value per share. The discount is normally expressed as a

percentage of the net asset value per share.

Dividend Yield

The annual dividend expressed as a percentage of the

share price.

Gearing

Total debt comprising debentures, loan stock, bank loans

and overdrafts less cash at bank and short term deposits

divided by shareholders’ funds.

Net Asset Value

The value of the total assets less the liabilities. Liabilities

for this purpose include both current and long-term

liabilities. To calculate the net asset value per ordinary

share, divide the net asset value by the number of

shares in issue.
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Release of Results
The half year results are announced in early December. The full year results are announced in early June. 

Annual General Meeting
The AGM is held in London in July.

Dividend Payment Dates
Dividends are paid on the ordinary shares as follows:

Interim : early January
Final : late July

Dividend Payments
Dividends can be paid to ordinary shareholders by means of BACS (Bankers’ Automated Clearing Services); mandate
forms for this purpose are available from the Registrar. Alternatively, shareholders can write to the Registrar (the address
is given on page 52 of this report) to give their instructions; these must include the bank account number, the bank
account title and the sort code of the bank to which payments are to be made.

Share Price Listings
The market price of the Company’s ordinary shares is published daily in The Financial Times. Some of the information is
published in other leading newspapers. The Financial Times also shows figures for the estimated net asset values and the
discounts applicable.

Share Price Information
The ISIN code/SEDOL (Stock Exchange Daily Official List) number of the Company’s ordinary shares is
GB0009064097/0906409. Other sources include Bloomberg (TRY.LN) and Reuters (TRY.L).

Internet
Details of the market price and net asset value of the shares can be found at www.trproperty.co.uk on the Company’s
website. 

Shareholders who hold their shares in certificated form can check their holdings with the Registrar, Computershare Investor
Services PLC, via www.computershare.com. Please note that to gain access to your details on the Computershare site you
will need the holder reference number stated on the top left hand corner of your share certificate.

Disability Act
Copies of this Report and Accounts and other documents issued by the Company are available from the company
secretary. If needed, copies can be made available in a variety of formats, including Braille, audio tape or larger type as
appropriate.

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare Investor Services PLC, which has installed textphones to allow speech and
hearing impaired people who have their own textphone to contact them directly, without the need for an intermediate
operator, by dialling 0870 702 0005. Specially trained operators are available during normal business hours to answer
queries via this service.

Alternatively, if you prefer to go through a ‘typetalk’ operator (provided by the Royal National Institute for Deaf People)
you should dial 18001 followed by the number you wish to dial.

For investors through the Henderson Investment Trust Share Plan, Henderson ISA or Henderson Transfer PEP or ISA,
a textphone telephone service is available on 020 7850 5406. This service is available during normal business hours.

General Shareholder Information continued
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Nominee Share Code
Where notification has been provided in advance, the Company will arrange for copies of shareholder communications to
be provided to the operators of nominee accounts. Nominee investors may attend general meetings and speak at
meetings when invited to do so by the Chairman.

Investors in the Henderson Investment Trust Share Plan, Henderson ISA and Henderson Transfer PEP or ISA receive all
shareholder communications. A letter of direction is provided to facilitate voting at general meetings of the Company.

Capital Gains Tax
The value for CGT purposes of the Company’s shares on 31 March 1982, the start of indexation allowance for inflation,
is shown below.

Ordinary shares of 25p each 11.828p*
Warrants issued 1994 3.775p

For shareholders who acquired ordinary shares through the conversion of C Shares on 7 July 1994 the adjusted cost of
the new shares for CGT purposes is 40.143p per share. 

Warrants issued to C shareholders have a base cost for CGT purposes of 12.811p per warrant.

* Adjusted for share issues  

The Finance Act 1998 included provisions which made considerable changes to the way that chargeable gains are
calculated for non-corporate shareholders in respect of disposals made on or after 6 April 1998. From that date pooling no
longer applies and disposals are matched against shares acquired in the following order:

• same date acquisitions;
• acquisitions within the following 30 days;
• previous acquisitions on or after 6 April 1998 (using ‘last in first out’ basis);
• any shares held in the pool as at 5 April 1998;
• any shares held in the pool as at 5 April 1982;
• any shares acquired before 6 April 1965; and
• any shares acquired subsequent to the disposal.

For disposals on or after 6 April 1998 indexation is still allowed but only up to April 1998. The Finance Act changes
apply a taper relief to the amount of the chargeable gains on these disposals. The taper is 5% for each complete year of
ownership after the first two complete years, with a maximum reduction of 40% after ten complete years.

In calculating the taper relief, assets held before 17 March 1998 qualify for an extra year.

The way that chargeable gains are calculated for companies remains under review by the Inland Revenue and for the
time being pooling remains.

The special rules that previously applied to shareholders disposing of shares, who had purchased their shares through
the Henderson Investment Trust Share Plan on a monthly basis, was withdrawn by the Inland Revenue for savings
commenced on or after 6 April 1998.

When savings commenced before 6 April 1998, the simplified basis will still apply for acquisitions during the
investment trust’s accounting period ended before 6 April 1999 which in the case of TR Property is 31 March 1999.

The calculation of the tax on chargeable gains will depend on personal circumstances. The above information
is of a general nature and is not exhaustive. If you are in any doubt about your personal tax position, you are
recommended to contact your professional adviser.

General Shareholder Information continued
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Secretary

Henderson Secretarial Services Limited,

represented by J S Ellman-Brown ACIS

Registrar

Computershare Investor Services PLC

PO Box 82

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 7NH

Telephone: 0870 702 0010

Registered Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP

1 More London Place

London SE1 2AF

Stockbrokers

UBS Investment Bank

1 Finsbury Avenue

London EC2M 2PP

Solicitors

Slaughter and May

One Bunhill Row

London EC1Y 8YY

Directors

A Ross Goobey (Chairman)

C M Burton

J H M Newsum

P L Salsbury

R A Stone

Registered Office

4 Broadgate

London EC2M 2DA

Telephone: 020 7818 1818

Facsimile: 020 7818 1819

Registered Number

Registered as an investment company in England and

Wales No. 84492

Investment Manager

Henderson Global Investors Limited, authorised and

regulated by the Financial Services Authority

Fund Manager:

C M Turner MRICS 

Deputy Manager:

M A Phayre-Mudge MRICS

Finance Manager:

J L Elliott ACA

Direct Property Portfolio Manager:

J F K Wilkinson MRICS

Investor Relations Manager:

M I L Vickery
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Henderson Investment Trust Share Plan
The Henderson Investment Trust Share Plan offers a simple and flexible way of investing in
TR Property Investment Trust plc. The Share Plan offers the following:

• Regular savings from £50 per month/quarter, or lump sum investments from £500
and additional ‘top-up’ from £100

• An income reinvestment facility. Alternatively, you can have dividends paid to your
bank or building society account

• All paperwork and documentation is simplified and reduced to a minimum

• Half yearly valuations with consolidated tax certificate and complimentary newsletters

Henderson ISA
You can invest directly in TR Property Investment Trust plc through the Henderson ISA. The
ISA offers the following:

• Tax free income and tax free growth

• Regular savings from £100 per month or lump sum investments from £2,000

• An income reinvestment facility. Alternatively, you can have dividends paid to your
bank or building society account

• Half yearly valuations, reports and complimentary newsletters

• Both Mini and Maxi ISAs available for investment by lump sum or regular savings

Henderson Transfer PEP or ISA
A Henderson Transfer PEP or ISA allows you to transfer your existing PEP or ISA funds into the
Trust. Investments retain their tax-efficient status during and after transfer.

Please remember that the value of your investment can fall as well as rise and you may not get
back the amount originally invested. Tax assumptions may change if the law changes and the
value of tax relief will depend upon your individual circumstances. 

Further Information
Please consult our website www.itshenderson.com or write to Henderson Global Investors,
FREEPOST, Newbury RG14 2ZZ. No stamp is required.

Alternatively, please contact your professional adviser for further information or call our Investor
Services Department on freephone 0800 832 832 quoting the reference REPORT. Please call
(44) 20 7818 1818 if you are telephoning from abroad.

Henderson Global Investors is the name under which Henderson Global Investors Limited,
Henderson Investment Funds Limited, Henderson Fund Management plc, Henderson Investment
Management Limited and Henderson Administration Limited (all authorised and regulated by the
Financial Services Authority), provide investment products and services. We may record telephone
calls for our mutual protection and to improve customer service.

4 Broadgate, London EC2M 2DA.
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